
APOLOGIES Committee Services
Tel. 01621 875791

Council Chamber 01621 859677
CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S OFFICE
CHIEF EXECUTIVE
Fiona Marshall

07 December 2016

Dear Councillor

You are summoned to attend the;

MEETING OF THE MALDON DISTRICT COUNCIL 

on THURSDAY 15 DECEMBER 2016 at 7.30 pm.

in the Council Chamber. Maldon District Council Offices, Princes Road, Maldon.

A copy of the agenda is attached.

Yours faithfully

Chief Executive

Unrestricted Document Pack



THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK



Page 3

AGENDA
COUNCIL
THURSDAY 15 DECEMBER 2016

1. Chairman's notices  

2. Apologies for absence  

3. Minutes - 27 October 2016  (Pages 9 - 20)

To confirm the Minutes of the meeting of the Council held on 27 October 2016 (copy 
enclosed).

4. Declarations of Interest  

To disclose the existence and nature of any Disclosable Pecuniary Interests, other 
Pecuniary Interests or Non-Pecuniary Interests relating to items of business on the 
agenda having regard to paragraphs 6 - 8 inclusive of the Code of Conduct for 
Members.

(Members are reminded that they are also required to disclose any such interests as 
soon as they become aware should the need arise throughout the meeting).

5. Public Questions  

To receive questions from members of the public, of which prior notification in writing 
has been received (no later than noon on the Tuesday prior to the day of the meeting).

6. Chairman's Announcements  

7. Questions in accordance with Procedure Rule 6 (3) of which notice has been given  

8. Recommendations of Committees for Decision by the Council  (Pages 21 - 68)

(i) To consider the report of the Director of Resources (copy enclosed).

Please note: Where appropriate this report contains links to the relevant 
Committee agenda, reports and Minutes.

(ii) Minutes of meetings of Committees
To note that since the last meeting of the Council, up until Wednesday 7 
December 2016 (Council agenda dispatch) the following Committees have met, 
and to receive any questions in accordance with Council and Committee 
Procedure Rule 6 (2).

Minutes reported to the last meeting and now published:
Overview and Scrutiny Committee 5 October
South Eastern Area Planning Committee 10 October



Page 4

Community Services Committee* 11 October
Overview and Scrutiny Committee (acting as the Crime and 
Disorder Committee) 12 October

Appointments Committee 14 October

Minutes published:
Central Area Planning Committee 19 October
North Western Area Planning Committee 31 October
South Eastern Area Planning Committee 7 November
Planning and Licensing Committee** 17 November
Overview and Scrutiny Committee 23 November

Minutes NOT finalised for publication:
Community Services Committee 22 November 
North Western Area Planning Committee 28 November
Finance and Corporate Services Committee** 29 November
South Eastern Area Planning Committee 5 December

* Please note that the these Minutes contain recommendations previously dealt 
with by the Council at its last meeting.

** Please see item (i) above as these Minutes contain recommendations to the 
Council.

9. FUL/MAL/16/00872 - Topsail Charters Limited, Cooks Boatyard, The Hythe, 
Maldon  (Pages 69 - 86)

To determine the above planning application in the light of a recommendation from the 
Central Area Planning Committee held on 14 December 2016 (report Director of 
Planning and Regulatory Services enclosed).

10. Schedule of Meetings 2017 / 18  (Pages 87 - 90)

To consider the report of the Chief Executive, (copy enclosed).

11. Appointment of Independent Person(s)  (Pages 91 - 92)

To consider the report of the Monitoring Officer, (copy enclosed).

12. Venue of Meetings of the South Eastern Area Planning Committee  (Pages 93 - 96)

To consider the report of the Interim Director of Resources, (copy enclosed).

13. Proceeds of Crime Act 2002  (Pages 97 - 100)

To consider the report of the Chief Executive, (copy enclosed).

14. Questions to the Leader of the Council in accordance with Procedure Rule 1 (3) (m)  

15. Business by reason of special circumstances considered by the Chairman to be urgent.  



Page 5

Note:
1. The Council operates a facility for public speaking.  This will operate only in relation 

to the consideration and determination of planning applications under Agenda Item 
No. 9.

2. The Committee may hear from one objector, one supporter, a Parish / Town Council 
representative, and the applicant / agent.  Please note that the opportunity to speak is 
afforded only to those having previous made previous written representation.

3. Anyone wishing to speak must notify the Committee Clerk or a Planning Officer 
between 7pm and 7.20pm prior to the start of the meeting.

4. For further information please ring 01621 875791 or 876232 or see the Council’s 
website – www.maldon.gov.uk/committees 

* Please note the list of related Background Papers attached to this agenda.

NOTICES

Sound Recording of Meeting
Please note that the Council will be recording any part of this meeting held in open session 
for subsequent publication on the Council’s website.  At the start of the meeting an 
announcement will be made about the sound recording.  Members of the public attending the 
meeting with a view to speaking are deemed to be giving permission to be included in the 
recording.  

Fire
In event of a fire, a siren will sound.  Please use the fire exits marked with the green running 
man.  The fire assembly point is outside the main entrance to the Council Offices.  Please 
gather there and await further instruction.

Health and Safety
Please be advised of the different levels of flooring within the Council Chamber.  There are 
steps behind the main horseshoe as well as to the side of the room.   

Closed-Circuit Television (CCTV)
Meetings held in the Council Chamber are being monitored and recorded by CCTV.

http://www.maldon.gov.uk/committees


Page 6

BACKGROUND PAPERS (FOR AGENDA ITEM 9)

The Background Papers listed below have been relied upon in the preparation of this report:
1. The current planning applications under consideration and related correspondence.
2. All third party representations and consultation replies received.
3. The following Statutory Plans and Supplementary Planning Guidance, together with 

relevant Government legislation, Circulars, Advice, Orders, Directions and Guidance:

Development Plans

 Maldon District Replacement Local Plan 2008 – Saved Policies
 Maldon District Local Development Plan 2014-2029 - submitted to the Secretary of 

State for Examination in Public on 25 April 2014 (as amended).

Legislation

 The Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended)
 Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990
 Planning (Hazardous Substances) Act 1990
 The Planning and Compensation Act 1991 and The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 

2004 (as amended)
 The Planning Act 2008
 The Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 1995 (as amended)
 The Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2010
 The Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987 (as amended)
 The Town and Country Planning (Control of Advertisements) (England) Regs 2007
 The Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regs 2011
 Localism Act 2011
 The Neighbourhood Planning (General) Regulations 2012
 The Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012
 Growth and Infrastructure Act 2013

Supplementary Planning Guidance and Other Advice
i) Government policy and guidance 

 National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and Technical Guidance
 Planning Practice Guidance (PPG) 
 Planning policy for traveler sites
 Planning practice guidance for renewable and low carbon energy
 Relevant government circulars

ii) Essex County Council
 Essex Design Guide 1997

iii) Maldon District Council
 Submission Local Development Plan (April 2014) (as amended)
 Five Year Housing Land Supply Statement 2014/15
 Planning Policy Advice Note v.4 (October 2015)
 Infrastructure Delivery Plan (All versions, including update in Council’s 

Hearing Statement)
 Infrastructure Phasing Plan (January 2015)



Page 7

 North Heybridge Garden Suburb Strategic Masterplan Framework - 2014
 South Maldon Garden Suburb Strategic Masterplan Framework - 2014
 Vehicle Parking Standards SPD - July 2006
 Accessibility to Buildings SPD – December 2006
 Children’s Play Spaces SPD – March 2006
 Sadd’s Wharf SPD – September 2007
 Heybridge Basin Timber Yard SPD – February 2007
 Developer Contributions Guide - 2010
 Affordable Housing Guide – June 2006
 Heybridge Basin Village Design Statement – November 2006
 Wickham Bishops Village Design Statement - 2010

Copies of all Background Papers are available for inspection at the Maldon District Council 
Offices, Princes Road, Maldon, Essex CM9 5DL during normal office hours



This page is intentionally left blank



534

MINUTES of
COUNCIL (ORDINARY)
27 OCTOBER 2016

PRESENT

Vice-Chairman H M Bass 

Councillors Mrs B F Acevedo, J P F Archer, E L Bamford, 
Miss A M Beale, B S Beale MBE, R G Boyce MBE, CC, 
Mrs P A Channer, CC, R P F Dewick, I E Dobson, 
A S Fluker, Mrs B D Harker, B E Harker, M S Heard, 
Miss M R Lewis, R Pratt, N R Pudney, S J Savage, 
D M Sismey, A K M St. Joseph, Mrs M E Thompson and 
Miss S White

652. CHAIRMAN'S NOTICES 

The Chairman drew attention to the list of notices published on the agenda.

653. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor M F L Durham, Mrs H E Elliott, 
P G L Elliott, M W Helm and Rev. A E J Shrimpton.

654. MINUTES - 8 SEPTEMBER 2016 

RESOLVED

(i) that the Minutes of the meeting of the Council held on 8 September 2016 be 
received.

Minute 492 – Questions to the Leader of the Council in Accordance with 
Procedure Rule 1 (3) (M)
Councillor H M Bass advised that line 4 of the first paragraph should read “Councillor 
Dewick then provided information …”. 

RESOLVED

(ii) that subject to the above amendment, the Minutes of the meeting of the Council 
held on 8 September 2016 be approved and confirmed.

655. MINUTES - 22 SEPTEMBER 2016 

RESOLVED that the Minutes of the Extraordinary meeting of the Council held on 22 
September 2016 be approved and confirmed.

Unrestricted Document Pack

Page 9

Agenda Item 3



535

656. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Councillor Mrs P A Channer declared a non-pecuniary interest as an Essex County 
Councillor should any matter discussed relate to it.

657. PUBLIC QUESTIONS 

In accordance with Procedure Rule 1(3)(e) and the Council’s Public Question Time and 
Participation at Council and Committee Meetings Scheme, the Leader of the Council 
referred to two questions from Councillor Wendy Stamp of which prior notification had 
been given.  A copy of the questions and prepared responses from the Leader of the 
Council were circulated to all Members and those in attendance at the meeting. 

Councillor Wendy Stamp read out her questions.

Question 1
“Does the leader of the Council share the Chairman’s view as expressed at the last full 
council meeting on the 8th September that “Town Councillors are expendable”  And do 
you know to what extent this view is shared by your fellow Councillors? 

I think many Town and Parish Councillors would like to know how much or how little 
their efforts are valued and by whom.  I also wish to remind everyone sitting in this 
chamber that being a Town and Parish Councillor is on an unpaid and on a voluntary 
basis. Volunteers contribute, a massive amount of unpaid work, time, energy and effort 
in many areas, enhancing the District’s unique high class rural countryside for residents 
and visitors.

I raised this question at our own town Council meeting but Mr Elliot wasn’t in 
attendance and sadly he isn’t here to answer again.

Given the dire warnings re dangers of fire and physical dangers, risks to Councillor's are 
not a suitable subject or excuse for poor taste jokes IF this is disguised as one.” 

Response:

“I consider the remark by Councillor P G L Elliott was flippant and was not meant to be 
taken seriously or to cause offence.  Councillor Elliott has himself been a Town 
Councillor for many years and knows the value of a good Town or Parish Council to the 
residents that they represent, as do the majority of Members here.”

Question 2 
“Why wasn’t The Chairman’s comment recorded in the minute 492 when Cllr Beale’s 
comment of “Council should be more careful about what is put in a report” was.  Both 
comments are in the public interest and should be open and transparently recorded as 
such.” 

Response:
“Minutes are essentially an official record of decisions, and where appropriate how 
those decisions are arrived at.  The Council’s Minutes are not verbatim and there is no 
basis for any associated content to be judged according to public interest.  Individual 

Page 10



536

Members’ comments are not normally recorded unless they are associated with a 
particular formality or inform a decision.”

658. CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS 

The Chairman of the meeting advised that both he and the Chairman of the Council had 
attended a number of events detailed below.

Date Function Attendee
09/09/2016 Rochford Chairman’s Charity Event Chairman
11/09/2016 Harlow Chairman’s Civic Service Vice Chairman

16/09/2016 Essex County Council (ECC) Chairman Civic 
Reception Vice Chairman

19/09/2016 Tour of the Plume Academy, Fambridge Campus Chairman

19/09/2016 Dengie Enterprise Support Celebrating Success 
Event Chairman

20/09/2016 Maldon Primary School, presenting School Council 
Badges Chairman

20/09/2016 Funeral of Councillor Charles MacKenzie Chairman

22/09/2016 Essex Association of Local Council AGM and 
Lunch Vice Chairman

24/09/2016 Burnham-on-Crouch (BOC) Carnival Queen's 
Afternoon Tea Chairman

25/09/2016 Costermonger Harvest Festival Chairman

01/10/2016 Saltmarsh 75 ultra two day running / walking event 
- setting the participants off at the start Chairman

02/10/2016 Saltmarsh 75 – finish line Chairman
09/10/2016 High Sheriff Justice Service Vice Chairman
13/10/2016 Homestart AGM Chairman
13/10/2016 Jack Petchey foundation presentation evening Chairman

15/10/2016 Castlepoint Mayor's Gala Night - Benfleet Operatic 
Society Chairman

20/10/2016 Action for Family Carers AGM Chairman
20/10/2016 Jack Petchey Foundation Awards Presentation Chairman
23/10/2016 Maldon Town Mayor Civic Service Vice Chairman

The Chairman welcomed Mr Kamal Mehta, Interim Director of Resources, to Maldon 
District Council.

The Chairman informed the Council that the Chairman of the Council and Chief 
Executive had attended the AGM of Homestart, Maldon on 13 October 2016.  
Homestart provide support to families who are finding it difficult to cope by providing 
trained volunteers to visit families in their own homes.  They offer free, confidential, 
non-judgmental, practical and emotional support.  The Chairman of Homestart, Anna 
Tomlins, expressed her gratitude during her presentation at the AGM to the Council for 
the provision of space in the building from which they operate.

The Chairman reminded Members of the two Minute Silence to be held on Armistice 
Day, Friday 11 November 2016.  He invited Members to join either the Chairman of the 

Page 11



537

Council at Hythe Quay, Maldon or himself at the War Memorial, Burnham-on-Crouch.  
Members were reminded to attend at either venue by 10.50am.

The Chairman highlighted two events he had attended - the Chairman of ECC Civic 
Reception and High Sherriff Justice Service – both of which he had found enjoyable and 
informative.

659. QUESTIONS IN ACCORDANCE WITH PROCEDURE RULE 6 (3) OF WHICH 
NOTICE HAS BEEN GIVEN 

There were none.

660. RECOMMENDATIONS OF COMMITTEES FOR DECISION BY THE 
COUNCIL 

(a) REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES

The Council considered the report of the Director of Resources presenting 
recommendations of Committees to the Council.  An addendum and a further update to 
this report was circulated at the meeting and detailed recommendations arising from 
both the Planning and Licensing Committee meeting on 15 September 2016 and the 
Community Services Committee on 30 August 2016 and 11 October 2016.

Community Services Committee (30 August 2016):

Minute 426 – Terms of Reference and Scheme of Delegation Update

RESOLVED

(i) that the delegation of items 15 to 20 of part (c) of the Committee’s 
Scheme of Delegation be transferred to the Director of Planning and 
Regulatory Services together with a replication of item 12, and also the 
deletion of item 2 of part (d) as no longer required;

(ii) that item 5 of part (a) of the Committee’s Terms of Reference – The 
Community Legal Service Partnership – be deleted as no longer required.

Minute 427 - Maldon Community Services and Community Hospital Project

It was noted that this recommendation linked to Planning and Licensing 
Committee Minute 526 (15 September 2016).  

RESOLVED

(iii) That the preparation of a business case for the provision by the Council 
of a new community hospital to serve the local community of the Maldon 
District be considered

Page 12



538

Planning and Licensing Committee (15 September 2016):

Minute 525 - Magnox Socio-Economic Scheme - New Bid for Grant Funding to 
Mitigate the Impact of Bradwell Power Station Moving Into Care and 
Maintenance: 

RESOLVED

(iv) that the projects outlined in the report are supported, in principle, with 
specific support being given to the following projects and excluding the 
Feasibility Study for the use of the Bradwell Reactor Cladding.
 Enterprise Centre and Growth Hub;
 Saltmarsh Hub;
 Circular Off-Road Cycle Path;
 Ferry Provision between Bradwell, Mersea Island, Wallasea, 

Burnham-on-Crouch and Tollesbury;
 Tourism Ambassadors;
 Maldon District Wine Region.

Minute 526 - Maldon Community Services and Community Hospital Project:

It was noted that this recommendation linked to Community Services Committee 
Minute 427 (30 August 2016).  

RESOLVED

(v) that the preparation of a business case for the provision by the Council of 
a new community hospital to serve the local community of the Maldon 
District be considered.

Minute 531 – Review of Delegation Arrangements:

In response to a question about whether the revised scheme of delegation would 
only come in to force once training had been provided, the Chairman and 
Councillor Channer advised that this was not the intention.

In response to a question regarding the number of Parish Council’s using the 
incorrect pro-forma, Councillor Channer advised that she did not have this 
information but would find out.

The Chairman, in response to a question, advised that he would seek 
clarification from the Director of Planning and Regulatory Services as to when 
the Parish / Town Council handbooks would be issued and ask him to respond to 
Members.

RESOLVED

(vi) that a revision be made to the ‘Parish Trigger’ procedure, item (b)(i)4 of 
the Area Planning Committee Terms of Reference as follows:

Page 13



539

“Where a representation from a Parish or Town Council (covering the 
geographical area in which the proposed development is located) has 
been received which objects to an application which the Director of 
Planning and Regulatory Services is minded to approve.  This must be 
supported by a reason that is based on a relevant material planning 
consideration in the opinion of the Director of Planning and Regulatory 
Services.  Where a representation from a Parish or Town Council 
(covering the geographical area in which the proposed development is 
located) has been received which supports an application which the 
Director of Planning and Regulatory Services is minded to refuse or 
objects to an application which the Director of Planning and Regulatory 
Services is minded to approve.  This provision shall not apply to those 
cases where there is a representation of ‘no comment’ or to minor classes 
of development affecting residential / domestic properties or within such 
curtilages involving porches, conservatories, boundary walls / fences, 
vehicle crossovers, garages, sheds, outbuildings, satellite dishes and 
replacement windows / doors.  The Parish Trigger will not be invoked if 
comments made by a Parish / Town Council are received after 28 days 
from the date of the Parish / Town Council being notified of the planning 
application or if the submitted comments are not made on the agreed 
standard template form.”

(vii) that a revision be made to item (b)(i)6 of the Area Planning Committee 
Terms of Reference as follows:

“Where proposals have been advertised as departures under paragraph 3 
of the Town and Country Planning (Development Plans and 
Consultation) (Departures) Directions 1999 and where the Officers’ 
recommendation is that permission should be granted.  Except where the 
principle of the development has already been approved through an 
extant planning permission.”

(viii) that paragraph (b)(i)2 of the Area Planning Committee Terms of 
Reference be amended as follows:

“For all other development where the floor space to be built, or a change 
of use of a building is proposed for 1,000 sq. metres or more, or where 
the site area is 1 hectare or more.”

(ix) that following points be added to the Planning and Licensing Committee 
(c) Scheme of Delegation (To the Director of Planning and Regulatory 
Services:

30 Applications where the site area exceeds 1 hectare in size, and 
this is the is only reason the application is defined as a ‘major 
development’, which the Director of Planning and Regulatory 
Services is minded to recommend approval on the basis the 
proposal is in accordance with the development plan and subject 
to the Director of Planning and Regulatory Services first 
consulting with the Chairman of the Council or relevant Planning 

Page 14



540

Committee (or the Vice Chairman in the Chairman’s absence) and 
the ward members.’

31 Applications for major or large scale development which the 
Director of Planning and Regulatory Services is minded to 
recommend approval on the basis the proposal is in accordance 
with the development plan and is made under Section 73 of the 
Town and Country Planning Act (1990) (as amended) only, 
subject to the Director of Planning and Regulatory Services first 
consulting with the Chairman of the Council or relevant Planning 
Committee (or the Vice Chairman in the Chairman’s absence) and 
the ward members.’

(x) that item (b)(i)9 of the Area Planning Committee Terms of Reference be 
amended as follows:

“Where an application has been resubmitted following refusal by an Area 
Committee contrary to Officers recommendation.”

Finance and Corporate Services Committee - 27 September 2016:

Minute 563 – Human Resources Policies and Procedures

RESOLVED

(xi) that all updates to the Human Resources policies and procedures 
(attached as Appendix 1 to the Minutes of the Finance and Corporate 
Services Committee) are approved; and

(xii) that the Attendance Management, Shared Parental Leave and Smoking 
Policy and Procedures (attached as Appendices 2 - 4 to the Minutes of 
the Finance and Corporate Services Committee) are approved.

Minute 572 – Release Of Restrictive Covenant – Remembrance Avenue, 
Burnham-On-Crouch

RESOLVED

(xiii) That the Committee’s Scheme of Delegation – Director of Resources be 
amended to include:

“the Director of Resources, in consultation with a valuer, a Legal 
Advisor and the Chairman of Finance and Corporate Services 
Committee, be authorised to release any restrictive covenants which are 
stated to be in favour of the Maldon District Council (or its predecessors) 
at a market value or at such other value as deemed appropriate by the 
Director or Resources.”

Page 15



541

Community Services Committee – 11 October 2016:

Minute 629 - South Essex Parking Partnership Extension

RESOLVED

(xiv) that the Council commits to a four year extension to the Operational 
Period of the South Essex Parking Partnership Manager by 11 November 
2016; and

(xv) that the Council agrees to the South Essex Parking Partnership (SEPP) to 
continue the delegated function for a further four years as set out in the 
Joint Committee Agreement and confirm this decision to the South Essex 
Parking Partnership Manager by 11 November 2016.

(b) MINUTES OF MEETINGS OF COMMITTEES

Members’ attention was drawn to the Addendum and Further Update that had been 
circulated at the meeting.  The Council noted the list of Committees that had met before 
and since the last meeting of the Council, up until Wednesday 19 October 2016.

Councillor Mrs P A Channer CC advised Members that she would address some 
possible changes to the Minutes of the Planning and Licensing Committee which took 
place on 15 September 2016 at the next meeting of the Committee.

A question was raised regarding the Community Services Committee on 30 August 
2016 regarding an investigation in to a business case for a new hospital in Maldon.  The 
Chairman advised that it was his understanding that this was a tidying up exercise 
because although the principle had been agreed by Council at a previous meeting,  the 
Finance & Corporate Services Committee had to agree funding. 

A question was also raised regarding the Review of Planning Delegation Arrangements 
and the Chairman confirmed that the Director of Planning and Regulatory Services 
would be asked to respond to Members as to when the Parish / Town Council handbook 
would be produced.

661. COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP SUBSTITUTION - DEADLINE FOR NOTICES 

The Council considered the report of the Director of Resources seeking approval of a 
minor revision to the Council and Committee Procedure Rules to make provision for a 
deadline to give notice of substitutions to better provide for circumstances where a 
Committee meeting is to be held during the day.

Councillor Miss M R Lewis proposed that the recommendation as set out in the report 
be agreed, subject to an amendment to alter this from giving three to four hours’ notice.  
Councillor A S Fluker proposed that the wording also be amended to refer to working 
hours’ notice.  These amendments were duly seconded and agreed.

RESOLVED that Council and Committee Procedure Rule 17(9) be revised to read as 
follows:

Page 16



542

A Member of a Committee shall, if the Member wishes another Member of the political 
group to which the Member belongs to attend a meeting of that Committee in his place, 
give the Chief Executive and the Leader written notice not later than four working hours 
before the published start time of that meeting that the Member is unable to attend and 
that the substitute Member named in the notice will attend in his place.

662. APPOINTMENT OF MEMBER REPRESENTATION ON COASTAL 
COMMUNITY TEAMS 

The Council considered the report of the Director of Customers and Community to 
agree Member representation on the Coastal Community teams and arrangements for 
appointment to be reviewed and made in future.

The report provided background information regarding the appointment of 
representatives to the Blackwater Estuary and River Crouch Coastal Community Team 
by the Planning and Licensing Committee.  It was noted that when the Community 
Services Committee had previously considered the appointment of Member 
representation it had done so only in relation to the Blackwater Estuary Team.  The 
Council was therefore required to clarify the Member representation on the River 
Crouch Coastal Community Team.

RESOLVED

(i) that the decision of the Community Services Committee on 18 April 2016 
(Minute 1141(i) refers) is restated to relate to both the Maldon and Blackwater 
Estuary and River Crouch Coastal Community Teams;

(ii) that the future review and making of appointments to the two Coastal 
Community Team Management Committees should rest with the Planning and 
Licensing Committee and the Community Services Committee at their first 
meetings each new Municipal Year.

663. FORWARD PLANNING ARRANGEMENTS 

The Council considered the report of the Director of Resources seeking Council 
endorsement for proposed arrangements to enable improved communication on cross-
cutting issues and forward planning within the organisation.

The Leader of the Council advised Members that whilst the report only mentioned 
Committee Chairmen and Vice-Chairmen, it was intended to refer to the Chairmen of 
the Community Services Committee, Finance & Corporate Services Committee and 
Planning & Licensing Committee or their deputies.  Due to the nature of the proposed 
meetings, there was no need to have representation from Chairman of the Standards, 
Overview & Scrutiny and Audit Committees.  This was set out in an Addendum to the 
report.

Councillor R G Boyce MBE, CC asked how this differed from the now-defunct MOL 
apart from the increase in membership?  In response, the Leader of the Council advised 
that this proposal was to enable Members to meet and forward plan.  MOL had very 
specific functions not necessarily to do with forward planning.  As we are not a cabinet 
system, Members had felt that they were disenfranchised from the formulating of ideas 

Page 17



543

when MOL was in existence.  This was to make sure that all three directorates “had 
their ducks in a row”.

It was noted that these meetings would not have any executive or delegated powers and 
therefore not take any decisions on behalf of the Council.

RESOLVED that periodic meetings between the Leader, Deputy Leader, Chairman (or 
Vice-Chairman in their absence) of the Community Services Committee, Finance & 
Corporate Services Committee and Planning & Licensing Committee, as set out in the 
report of the Director of Resources, be endorsed.

664. QUESTIONS TO THE LEADER OF THE COUNCIL IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
PROCEDURE RULE 1 (3) (M) 

Councillor R G Boyce, asked if the Leader agreed that although the Council and its 
business was very serious, a bit of amusement and fun does help to relieve the 
seriousness without detracting from the business of the Council.  The Leader advised 
that she was in absolute agreement with this.

Councillor A S Fluker paid tribute to the hard work that Parish and Town Councillors 
do.  He congratulated those involved in the recent installation of Automatic Number 
Plate Readers in Latchingdon.  He asked if the Leader agreed it would make the Dengie 
safer.  The Leader responded that she did agree and hoped that residents would also be 
reassured that the Dengie was not being left behind in policing the District.

Councillor Mrs B F Acevedo asked the Leader to request that Members make 
nominations for the Maldon District Council Business Awards.  The Awards were good 
for both the Council and businesses and heightened profiles.  She reminded Members 
that nomination forms were in pigeon holes and that the Officer had agreed for an 
extended deadline for nominations.  The Leader responded that the form was lengthy 
and off-putting to complete.  Also, Members had not expected to be those making 
nominations and the Leader, whilst supporting the awards initiative, hoped that the 
Council could consider this feedback and learn from this for the next time.  It was noted 
that if Members required support with making nominations that Officers could assist 
with completion of the form. 

Councillor S J Savage asked if the Leader would agree that it was time for the 
Transformation Board to meet.  The Leader replied that although she would like to see it 
meet as soon as possible, officers had recently had a great deal of meetings and she did 
not know when it would actually meet.

Councillor B S Beale asked if the Leader agreed that Members should be informed of 
all staff vacancies on a regular basis.  The Leader advised that as vacancies are an 
operational issue she could not speak on behalf of the Chief Executive, but would put 
this proposal to her so that Members could be informed prior to each Council meeting.

Councillor H M Bass advised Members that he had requested an updated version of the 
organisational chart from the Chief Executive.

Page 18



544

665. BUSINESS BY REASON OF SPECIAL CIRCUMSTANCES CONSIDERED BY 
THE CHAIRMAN TO BE URGENT 

There was none.

666. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS 

RESOLVED that under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public 
be excluded from the meeting for the following item of business on the grounds that it 
involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 2 of Part 1 
of Schedule 12A to the Act, and that this satisfies the public interest test.

667. SENIOR MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE 

The Leader advised that following discussions with several Members she proposed 
withdrawing the report of the Chief Executive pending further discussions.  This was 
duly seconded and agreed.

RESOLVED that the report of the Chief Executive reviewing the Senior Management 
Structure of Maldon District Council be withdrawn pending further discussion.

There being no further items of business the Chairman closed the meeting at 8.20 pm

H M BASS
CHAIRMAN

(a)
(b)

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 20



Agenda Item no. 8
Our Vision: Working in Partnership to make the Maldon District a better place to live, work and enjoy

REPORT of
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
to
COUNCIL
15 DECEMBER 2016

RECOMMENDATIONS OF COMMITTEES FOR DECISION BY THE COUNCIL

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1 To present for the decision of the Council the recommendations of the Committees.

2. RECOMMENDATION

That Members consider the recommendations contained in Sections 3 and 4 of this 
report.

3. PLANNING AND LICENSING COMMITTEE – 17 NOVEMBER 2016

3.1 Web link to agenda, reports and Minutes for the above meeting 
https://democracy.maldon.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=133&MId=1066

3.2 MINUTE 706 – NEIGHBOURHOOD PLAN UPDATES FOR GREAT TOTHAM, WICKHAM 
BISHOPS AND BURNHAM-ON-CROUCH AND PROPOSED UPDATES TO THE COUNCIL’S 
SCHEME OF DELEGATION FOR DESIGNATING NEIGHBOURHOOD AREAS

3.2.1 Minute Extract:

Councillor Miss M R Lewis left and rejoined the meeting during this item of business.

The Chairman introduced Mr Ian Butt, Interim Strategic Planning Policy Manager and 
welcomed him to the meeting.

The Committee considered the report of the Director of Planning and Regulatory 
Services updating Members on progress of the Neighbourhood Area applications 
received from Great Totham and Wickham Bishops Parish Councils.  The report also 
outlined progress on the Burnham-on-Crouch Neighbourhood plan.

Appendix 1 detailed the proposed Great Totham Neighbourhood Area which covered 
the entire parish area except for that part allocated in the draft Local Development 
Plan (LDP) as North Heybridge Garden Suburb.  Appendix 2 set out the proposed 
Wickham Bishops Neighbourhood area.

The report set out changes to Regulations relating to Neighbourhood Areas and how 
these would make the process of designating all Parish areas simpler and quicker.  

Page 21

Agenda Item 8

https://democracy.maldon.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=133&MId=1066


Agenda Item no. 8

Members were advised that the introduction of set timescales for some of the formal 
elements of the Neighbourhood Planning process would ensure the timely progress of 
Plans but may have resource implications for the Council.

Councillors H M Bass and M F L Durham, the Ward Members, raised concern due to 
no reference within the Officers report to the Ulting and Langford Neighbourhood 
Plan.  They advised of the Parish Council’s upset regarding this and provided the 
Committee with details of the work done by the Parish Council on the Neighbourhood 
Plan including its current status.  In response the Planning Policy Officer advised that 
following receipt of a letter from the Parish Council she had consulted the 
Neighbourhood Plan team at the Department for Communities and Local Government 
to identify what stage the Council should roll the Langford and Ulting Neighbourhood 
Plan back to.  A response was still awaited.  Councillor Bass referred to the work 
undertaken to date with Langford and Ulting Parish Council and requested a report 
from Officers advising what the Council was aiming to do to secure this 
Neighbourhood Plan.

A lengthy debate ensued regarding the Langford and Ulting Neigbourhood Plan and 
other Parish / Towns which were progressing Neighbourhood Plans.  In response, the 
Chairman requested that Officers provide a list of all Neighbourhood Plans along with 
their current status.

3.2.2 Committee recommendation:

That the Planning and Licensing Committee Terms of Reference, Section (c) Scheme 
of Delegation – To the Director of Planning and Regulatory Services, paragraph 28 be 
updated as set out below, taking into account the change in legislation:

28 To determine neighbourhood area applications where no representations 
objecting to the proposal have been received to a public consultation, or where 
public consultation is not required by regulation, and where the area to be 
designated is coterminous with or wholly within the area of a civil parish.  
Any such decisions made are to be reported to the Members of the Planning 
and Licensing Committee.

4. FINANCE AND CORPORATE SERVICES COMMITTEE 
– 29 NOVEMBER 2016

4.1 Web link to agenda, reports and Minutes for the above meeting 
https://democracy.maldon.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=131&MId=1027&Ver=4

4.2 MINUTE 758 – HUMAN RESOURCES POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

4.2.1 Minute Extract:

The Committee considered the report of the Interim Director of Resources seeking 
Members’ approval of the Council’s human resources policies and procedures that 
had been amended.  

Page 22

https://democracy.maldon.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=131&MId=1027&Ver=4


Agenda Item no. 8

The report advised that a new Stress Management Policy had been developed 
(attached as Appendix 1 to the report) to improve the management of work related 
stress issues within the Council.  An Equality Impact Assessment had been 
undertaken and was attached as Appendix 2 to the report.

In response to a question regarding identifying new staff that may have a higher risk 
of stress / sickness, the Chairman reminded Members that the Council was limited in 
what is could request from new employees in accordance with policy requirements.  
The Interim Director of Resources advised that sickness periods could be requested 
from previous employees but not the detail.  The Chief Executive explained for the 
more senior posts psychometric testing was carried out with resilience being one of 
the areas considered.

4.2.2 Committee recommendation:

That the new Stress Management Policy (attached as APPENDIX 1 to this report) be 
approved.

4.3 MINUTE 760 – LOCAL COUNCIL TAX SUPPORT SCHEME 2017 / 18

4.3.1 Minute Extract:

The Committee considered the report of the Interim Director of Resources seeking 
consideration of the impact of the Local Council Tax Support (LCTS) Scheme for the 
Maldon District and endorsement of a substantially unchanged cost neutral scheme 
for 2017 / 18.  

The Equality Impact Assessment (Appendix 2 to the report) was circulated prior to 
the meeting.  

The report set out the current scheme and its impact on customers.  It was noted that a 
consultation exercise had been undertaken and a summary of the responses received 
were attached at Appendix 1 to the report.

Members were advised that in order to deliver a LCTS scheme within the budget for 
2017 / 18 the only changes being proposed were a cost of living allowance in line 
with the rates proposed by the Department for Work and Pensions (DWP) for 
pensioners.  

The report detailed the funding made available by Essex County Council for an 
Exceptional Hardship Fund, advising that the same funding would be available for 
2017 / 18.  

It was confirmed that the Council had a legal duty to consult with the public in respect 
of Council Tax Support.

4.3.2 Committee recommendation:

(i) that a cost of living increase in line with the Department for Work and 
Pensions schemes be included in the Local Council Tax Support Scheme for 
2016 / 17 for Pensioners only;

Page 23



Agenda Item no. 8

(ii) that legislative changes being introduced to the Housing Benefit Scheme for 
2017 / 18 are mirrored in the Councils Local Council Tax Support Scheme to 
ensure consistency;

(i) that in all other respects the Local Council Tax Support Scheme and Hardship 
Scheme remain unchanged and that this decision has been made following 
Members’ careful reading of, and regard to the Equality Impact Assessment 
(attached as APPENDIX 2 to this report).

4.4 MINUTE 767 – CAPITAL PROJECT BIDS 2017 / 18

4.4.1 Minute Extract:

The Committee considered the report of the Interim Director of Resources to review 
capital project bids that had been put forward to form part of the 2017 / 18 to 2020 / 
21 capital programme.  Members were asked to consider and prioritise capital project 
bids in preparation for consideration in the annual budget report in January 2017.

Appendices A and B to the report provided an overall summary of the various bids for 
capital projects along with copies of the project management methodology reports.  It 
was noted that these bids had been categorised into three main groups, essential, 
service failure and service improvement.  

4.4.2 Committee recommendation:

That the capital projects as set out below and detailed in APPENDIX 3 to this report, 
be identified for inclusion for consideration in the 2017 / 18 capital programme:

Essential:
 Park Road Repairs
 New Car Parking Signage in Town Centre and Promenade Park

Service Failure / Service Improvement:
 PC and Printer replacement Programme 
 IT Project Officer 
 Email replacement – upgrade of Exchange and Enterprise Vault
 Parks Vehicle – Rolling Replacement Programme
 Amphitheatre Fencing
 All Weather Car Parking Improvements
 New Accessible Play site
 Improved screen of existing depot space within Riverside Park
 New roof for Heybridge Cemetery Chapel
 Mobile welfare facility for Volunteer and Community Payback schemes
 Replacement vehicle for Maintenance Officer(s)

Page 24



Agenda Item no. 8

4.5 MINUTE 769 – COUNCIL TAX BASE 2017 / 18

4.5.1 Minute Extract:

The Committee considered the report of the Director of Resources relating to the 
Council Tax Base for 2017 / 18.  It was noted that the Council had to notify its tax 
base calculations to Essex County Council, Essex Fire Authority, the Police and 
Crime Commissioner for Essex and Parish Councils by 31 January 2017.

It was explained that the tax base figure was an integral part of the calculations for 
setting the level of Council Tax.  The detailed calculation of the relevant amounts for 
2017 / 18 were shown in Appendix A to the report.  

Members were informed that the tax base used for 2016 / 17 was 23,455.7.  The 
proposed new figure represented an increase of 413 or 1.8%.  This increase related to 
the number of new houses now on the valuation list.

4.5.2 Committee recommendation:

That in accordance with the Local Authorities (Calculation of Tax Base) Regulations 
2012 the amount calculated by the Maldon District Council as its Council Tax Base 
for the year 2017 / 18 shall be set at 23,868.7.

Background Papers: Previous related reports and Minutes to the above meetings.

Enquiries to: Fiona Marshall, Chief Executive, (Tel: 01621 875710).

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 27

APPENDIX 1 
 
Maldon District Council  
Managing Work Related Stress Policy 

 

 

DRAFT 
 

Managing Work Related Stress 
Policy 

 

Page 27



Page 2 of 27

APPENDIX 1 
 
Maldon District Council  
Managing Work Related Stress Policy 

 

 

Document Control Sheet 
 

Document title Managing Work Related Stress 

Summary of 
purpose 

The purpose of this policy and procedure is to provide information and 
guidance on managing work related stress in employees at Maldon District 
Council. It is recognised that the Council has a duty of care towards its 
employees which extends to mental health as well as physical health and the 
Council seeks to identify any sources of stress in the workplace and take 
action to reduce harmful stress.  

 

Prepared by HR 

  

Status Final 

Version number 1 

Approved by  

Approval date November 2016 

  

Date of 
implementation 

November 2016 

Review frequency  

Next review date As appropriate or as required by legislative changes 

Circulation All staff 

Published on the 
Council’s website 

 

 
Validity Statement 

 
This document is due for review as appropriate or as required by legislative changes. Users of 
the policy should ensure that they are consulting the currently valid version of the document. 

  
 

 
 

If you would like this information in 
large print, Braille or another language, 
please contact HR. 

Page 28



Page 3 of 27

APPENDIX 1 
 
Maldon District Council  
Managing Work Related Stress Policy 

 

 

 
CONTENTS 

 

Page 
 

Definitions 

Section A – Policy 

1. Policy Statement, Aims & Objectives 5 

2. Legislation & Guidance 5 

3. Scope 6 

4. Accountabilities & Responsibilities 6 

5. Dissemination, Training & Review 8 

Section B – Procedure 

1. Causes of Stress and Preventative Measures 10 

2. Symptoms of Stress 12 

3. Managing Identified Stress 14 

Appendices 

Appendix 1 – Guidance on how to implement the policy flowchart  

Appendix 2 – Self Analysis Risk Assessment 

Page 29



Page 4 of 27

APPENDIX 1 
 
Maldon District Council  
Managing Work Related Stress Policy 

 

 

DEFINITIONS 
 

Term Definition 
 
Stress The Health and Safety Executive defines stress as the adverse 

reaction people have to excessive pressures or types of demand 
placed on them. There is a clear distinction between pressure, which 
can create a ‘buzz’ and be a motivating factor, and stress. Stress is a 
natural reaction to demand or pressure and people are adapted to be 
able to cope with short term stress, but if pressure is prolonged, too 
frequent, or out of control, stress reactions can become chronic and 
lead to ill health. 

Page 30



Page 5 of 27

APPENDIX 1 
 
Maldon District Council  
Managing Work Related Stress Policy 

 

 

SECTION A – POLICY 
 
1. Policy Statement, Aims and Objectives 

 
1.1. Maldon District Council (‘the Council’) is committed to supporting and 

protecting the health, safety and welfare of its employees. It is recognised 
that this duty of care extends mental health as well as physical health and the 
Council seeks to identify any sources of stress in the workplace and take 
action to reduce harmful stress. 

 
1.2. This policy places emphasis on maintaining positive mental health and in 

particular recognises how, unless proper arrangements are in place, stress in 
the workplace can impact adversely on an individual’s performance and 
ultimately the delivery of the Council’s organisational objectives. 

 
1.3. This policy outlines the legislation relating to stress at work and the possible 

causes and symptoms of stress. 
 
1.4. The development of this policy will: 

 
• Ensure that legal requirements are complied with as far as it is reasonably 

practicable, promote best practice, and improve knowledge and skills in stress 
management. 

• Identify as far as it reasonable practicable, workplace stressors, and conduct 
risk assessments to eliminate or reduce stress, or control the risks from 
stress. Risk assessments will be regularly reviewed. 

• Provide support and advice for effective stress management. 
• Ensure the access to free and confidential counselling for employees 

affected by stress either caused by work or external factors is available, 
via the Council’s Employee Assistance Programme provider. 

• Ensure a risk management process is in place to report principal risks to the 
Corporate Leadership Team (CLT). 

 
2. Legislation and Guidance 

 
2.1. Whilst there is no specific legislation on controlling stress at work the Health 

and Safety Executive (HSE) have issued standards that can be used to assist 
in assessing risk and the management of work related stress issues. In 
addition: 

 
• Employers have a duty under the Health and Safety at Work Act 1974 to 

ensure, so far as is reasonable practicable, that their workplaces are safe and 
healthy. 

 
• Under the Management of Health and Safety Regulations 1999 employers are 

obliged to assess the nature and scale of risks to health in their workplace 
a n d  base their control measures on it. 

 
• Advice from the HSE states that ‘Ill health from workplace stress must be 

Page 31



Page 6 of 27

APPENDIX 1 
 
Maldon District Council  
Managing Work Related Stress Policy 

 

 

treated in the same way as ill health from other physical hazards. Employers 
have a legal duty to take reasonable care to ensure employee’s health is not 
placed at risk through excessive and sustained levels of stress arising from 
the way work is organised, the way people deal with each other at work or 
from the day to day demands of work’. 

 
• Working Time Regulations 1998 limit the working week to an average of 48 

hours. However, a member of staff may under certain circumstances opt out 
of these arrangements but they must agree in writing to work more than the 
4 8  hours. Employees are not encouraged to work beyond 48 hours in order 
to maintain an effective work life balance. 

 
• Illnesses such as depression or mental ill health will in certain circumstances 

secure protection under the Equality Act 2010 and as such reasonable 
adjustments to employment should be made to enable the employee to return 
to work. Further advice in contained in the Managing Attendance Policy and 
Procedure. 

 
• The Council may be subject to legal proceedings should an employee suffer 

any detriment to their health due to work related stress and therefore is 
required to take a proactive approach to reduce the risk of work related stress. 

 
 
3. Scope 

 
3.1 This policy applies to those members of staff who are directly employed 

by the Council and for whom the Council has legal responsibility.  
 

As part of good employment practice, agency workers are also required to 
abide by the Council’s policies and procedures, as appropriate, to ensure 
their health, safety and welfare whilst undertaking work for the Council. 

 
 
4. Accountabilities and Responsibilities 

 
4.1 Overall accountability for the health, safety and welfare of the workforce lies 

with the Chief Executive. Responsibility is delegated to the following: 

Page 32



Page 7 of 27

APPENDIX 1 
 
Maldon District Council  
Managing Work Related Stress Policy 

 

 

 

Corporate 
Leadership 

Team and all 
line managers 

 

 

Have delegated responsibility for: 
• Ensuring good communication between 

management and employees. 
• Ensuring employees are provided with meaningful 

development opportunities. 
• Ensuring workloads are monitored to ensure 

manageable workloads. 
• Ensuring deadlines are realistic. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

All line 
managers 

 
Have delegated responsibility for: 
• Ensuring the policy is communicated to 

employees and to endeavour to preserve and 
promote positive mental health and reduce 
negative stress. 

• Encouraging employees to discuss any problems 
and avail themselves of support available. 

• Ensuring regular Performance Conversations 
(one to ones) with individual employees 
include a discussion on wellbeing. 

• Consideration of the impact on wellbeing of any 
decisions taken and where appropriate ensuring 
risk assessments are undertaken. Potential 
stressors may include changes in the physical 
environment, deployment of the workforce and the 
impact of new technology. 

• Identifying and responding effectively to 
employees with problems and recognising work 
situations that may lead to excessive stress levels. 

• Taking all reasonable steps to alleviate excessive 
stress. 

• Seeking advice from Human Resources as soon 
as possible when a cause for concern is raised or 
identified. 

• Referral of employees to Occupational 
Health/Staff counselling where appropriate. 

Page 33



Page 8 of 27

APPENDIX 1 
 
Maldon District Council  
Managing Work Related Stress Policy 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

All Staff 

 
Have delegated responsibility for: 
• Awareness of their own range of feelings and 

reactions to stressful situations and their personal 
methods of coping. 

• Recognising the warning signs of excessive stress 
being suffered by colleagues. 

• Expressing their views to colleagues and 
managers and/or Human Resources regarding 
potential work related stressors. 

• Seeking professional advice and support by either 
management or self-referral to Occupational 
Health Services and/or Staff Counselling when 
unable to cope with excessive stress whether 
generated by work or personal problems that are 
impacting on work. 

• Taking all reasonable steps to ensure that they do 
not cause unnecessary stress to others. 

• Completing staff surveys. 

 
 
 
 

Human 
Resources 

Have delegated responsibility for: 
• Providing advice and guidance in relation to 

this policy. 
• Offering support and advice to both managers 

and employees experiencing problems with 
stress. 

• Monitoring the reasons for sickness absence. 
• Ensuring the appropriate provision of training. 
• Encouraging referral to support services. 
• Ensuring significant risks highlighted through 

sickness absence monitoring or risk 
assessments are anonymised and recorded 
accordingly. 

 
 
 
 
 

Occupational 
Health Services 

 
Have responsibility for: 
• Advising managers or employees who identify 

potential problems in their area or in themselves. 
• Identify the necessary support for employees 

who are referred by their line manager because 
of concerns about their well- being.  

 
 
5. Dissemination, Training and Review 

 
5.1. Dissemination 

 
5.1.1. The effective implementation of this procedural document will support 

openness and transparency. The Council will: 

Page 34



Page 9 of 27

APPENDIX 1 
 
Maldon District Council  
Managing Work Related Stress Policy 

 

 

• Ensure all staff and stakeholders have access to a copy of this document 
via the intranet. 

• Communicate to staff any relevant action to be taken via staff 
meetings/email. 

 
5.2. Training 

 
5.2.1. All staff will be offered relevant training commensurate with their duties and 

responsibilities. Staff requiring support should speak to their line manager in 
the first instance. Support may also be obtained through the HR 
Department. 

 
 
5.3. Review 

 
5.3.1. As part of its development, this policy and its impact on staff, customers and 

the public has been reviewed in line with the Council’s Equality Duties. The 
purpose of the assessment is to identify and if possible remove any 
disproportionate adverse impact on employees, customers and the public on 
the grounds of the protected characteristics under the Equality Act. 

 
5.3.2. The  procedural  document  will  be  reviewed  as required  and  in 

accordance with the following on an as and when required basis: 
 

• Legislatives changes 
• Good practice guidelines 
• Case Law 
• Significant incidents reported 
• New vulnerabilities identified 
• Changes to organisational infrastructure 
• Changes in practice 

 

Page 35



Page 10 of 27

APPENDIX 1 
 
Maldon District Council  
Managing Work Related Stress Policy 

 

 

SECTION B – PROCEDURE 
 

1. Causes of Stress and Preventative Measures 
 

1.1. It is accepted that any job can cause stress and also that stress is not just 
about overwork as boredom and monotony can also be stressful. 

 
1.2. The following table details the most common causes of stress and how they 

could be prevented. 
 

Cause of Stress Preventative Measure 
Dealing with demanding customers or 
the public 

Ensure employees are trained in conflict 
resolution and that they are fully 
supported by their line manager through 
regular Performance Conversation 
meetings. 

Financial cuts, organisational change 
and lack of job security 

Ensure any organisational restructuring 
is done in partnership with Unison and 
in consultation with employees. HR will 
ensure the process followed has the 
minimum adverse effect on employees.

Poor working conditions Where poor working conditions are 
identified the line manager will arrange 
for a suitable workplace risk assessment 
to be conducted and advice will be 
sought on achieving safe working 
conditions. 

Threats of violence, harassment and 
bullying 

Employees should be aware of the 
Grievance policy, which refers to bully 
and harassment in the workplace and 
early intervention and advice should be 
sought from the employee’s line 
manager or Human Resources. 

Lack of childcare or flexibility Where possible flexible working 
arrangements should be offered to staff 
who are struggling to manage child care 
and work. A scheme is in place which  
provides financial assistance with 
childcare. 

Lack of control over work Managers should have regular 
Performance Conversation meetings with 
employees and should aim to empower 
employees to manage their own 
workload. Where there are elements of 
work that may be outside of the 
employee’s control the manager should 
ensure the employee understands the 
reason for this and understands what is 
expected of them. 

Page 36



Page 11 of 27

APPENDIX 1 
 
Maldon District Council  
Managing Work Related Stress Policy 

 

 

Too demanding a job or too high a 
workload 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

If it becomes apparent that the 
employee is finding the job too 
demanding the manager should ensure 
that the employee is clear on what is 
expected and that they are given the 
appropriate training and development to 
undertake their role and have realistic 
objectives to achieve. 

 
From time to time there will be peaks and 
troughs of work and the employee and 
the manager should work together to 
plan the workload. Where the workload is 
consistently high the manager may be 
required to assess the staffing levels 
within the service area. 
 

Monotonous or boring work Where possible the manager should 
include some variety of work. Some 
people enjoy work of a repetitive nature, 
others do not and the manager and the 
employee may need to have a discussion 
about the suitability of the role for the 
individual concerned. The Performance 
Review process can be used to 
encourage and support the employee to 
develop their skills in order to move to an 
alternative role. 

Lack of Leaning and Development Managers should ensure that they 
enable the employee to access the 
appropriate learning identified as part of 
the Performance Review process. The 
individual should take responsibility for 
sourcing the learning and may seek 
advice from the Learning & Engagement 
Officer. 

Excessive Hours Where it is apparent an employee is 
working excessively the manager should 
discuss the reasons for this with the 
individual. 

Working in isolation 
 
 
 
 

Managers should ensure that employees 
working in isolation are familiar with the 
arrangements for lone working and that 
they are included in team meetings and 
have regular Performance 
Conversations. 

Page 37



Page 12 of 27

APPENDIX 1 
 
Maldon District Council  
Managing Work Related Stress Policy 

 

 

Working relationships Managers should discuss working 
relationships are part of the Performance 
Conversation meeting and issues that 
are raised are dealt with in a constructive 
and supportive manner. 

 
 
 
 

The above list is not exhaustive. 

Page 38



Page 13 of 27

APPENDIX 1 
 
Maldon District Council  
Managing Work Related Stress Policy 

 

 

1.3. The HSE guidance identifies six risk factors linked with work related stress: 
 

• Demands: issues like workload, work patterns and the work environment. 
• Control: how much say the person has in the way they do their work. 
• Support: includes the encouragement, sponsorship and resources 

provided by the organisation, line management and colleagues. 
• Relationships: includes promoting positive working to avoid conflict and 

dealing with unacceptable behaviour. 
• Role: whether people understand their role within the organisation and 

whether the organisation ensures that the person does not have conflicting 
roles. 

• Change: how organisational change is managed and communicated in the 
organisation. 

Further information can be accesses on www.hse.gov.uk/stress 
 

1.4. For each of the hazards listed above managers should ask what action is 
already being taken, is it enough and what more could be done. Control 
measures may include removing the risk altogether, reorganising the 
workload, considering short or long term flexible working options, providing 
clear guidelines and instructions to employees and offering support via 
Occupational Health or the Employee Assistance Programme if 
appropriate. 

 
2. Symptoms of Stress 

 
2.1. If an employee is experiencing stress at work they may develop some of the 

following symptoms: 
 

• Anxiety 
• Tension 
• Disturbed sleep 
• Headaches 
• Indigestion 
• Weight loss/gain 
• Skin rashes 
• Muscle fatigue particularly neck and shoulders 
• Raised blood pressure/rapid heartbeat 
• Increased use of alcohol, smoking or drugs 
• Tensions at home 

 
2.2. These symptoms may manifest themselves at work as: 

 
• Irritability and moodiness 
• Fall in performance, inability or reduced ability to cope with normal tasks 

and situations 
• Becoming accident prone 

Page 39



Page 14 of 27

APPENDIX 1 
 
Maldon District Council  
Managing Work Related Stress Policy 

 

 

• Forgetfulness 

• Poor timekeeping 
• Increased sickness absence 
• Depression and general negative outlook 

 

2.3. Without intervention these symptoms can develop into serious long term 
health conditions. Managers should refer to the Managing Performance Policy 
for guidance in handling cases of poor performance. Advice should be sought 
from Human Resources before any action is instigated. 

 
3. Managing Identified Stress 

 
3.1. Once a cause for concern is identified either by an individual employee or by a 

manager, the manager should arrange to meet with the individual employee 
and should seek advice from Human Resources who may provide support at 
the meeting. 

 
3.2. The purpose of the meeting will be to establish what the causes of the stress 

are, what symptoms are being experienced and how to support the individual 
to manage their symptoms, reduce and/or remove the causal factors where 
possible, taking into account the preventative measures shown in the table in 
paragraph 1.2. 

 
3.3. The next step will be to arrange a stress risk assessment which will be carried 

out by the manager, supported by Human Resources. Following the 
assessment a report will be produced which will be used to develop an action 
plan to address the areas of concern. 

 
3.4. In some circumstances, where there is a significant impact on the individual, a 

referral to Occupational Health will be required. Wherever this is the case the 
stress risk assessment report should be sent to Occupational Health with the 
referral. 

 
3.5. Action plans should set out specific and measurable actions and outcomes 

and should be time limited. 
 
3.6. Regular review meetings should be held with the individual until the 

achievement of the action plan. Managers should subsequently ensure as 
part of routine Performance Conversation meetings that any further 
problems are identified at the earliest possible opportunity and action is 
taken to prevent any escalation of symptoms. 

Page 40



APPENDIX 1 
 
Maldon District Council  
Managing Work Related Stress Policy 

 
Appendix 1 

GUIDANCE ON HOW TO IMPLEMENT THE POLICY – FLOWCHART 

 

How might an individual become 
aware of and recognise stress 

for themselves? 
 

• Unable to concentrate or 
remember things 

• Losing sleep through worrying 
• Feeling anxious, irritable 

and/or depressed 
• Feelings of panic 
• More days off sick than usual 
• Avoidance of social situations 
• A colleague, manager, friend 

letting you know that you 
appear stressed 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Appropriate Action for the Individual 
• Be aware of and take responsibility 

 
 
 
 

Cause for Concern 
identified 

 
By individual staff member 

Appropriate Action for the 
Manager 

 
• Contact HR 
• Arrange to meet with the 

individual 

• Read through the 
Manager’s Good Practice 
Guide to Stress 
Management 

for own well being 

• Seek support from within MDC, 
family and/or GP 

• Arrange to meet with manager/HR 
• Prepare to be open about the factors 

creating the stress i.e. workload, role 
conflict, personal 

• Seek support from MDC Employee 
Assistance Programme 

 
 
 

                        Action Plan agreed   
between individual,  

                                  member of staff  
                             and manager 

Discussion takes place 
between 

 
individual member of staff, 

manager and a member of HR 
 

 
 
What to remember during the Discussion 

• The manager is there to listen carefully to the individual 
and to understand the points being made 

• During the meeting the manager will need to gather 
information, handle emotions, give and receive 
feedback, agree action 

• Talk about the support that the individual is getting 

• More than one meeting may be needed to give time for 
reflection 

• Notes should be taken and retained 

 
Action Plan: Might include 

 
• Recognition that there is a situation which requires managing 
• Commitment of both individual and manager to the plan 
• Agreed specific actions with timescales 
• Agreed sources of support for individual 
• Agreed level of confidentiality as to who should be informed and by whom 
• Agreed timescale for follow up meeting 

 
 
 
 

Page 14 of 27 

How might a manager recognise stress in others? 
 

Individual or someone else informs manager directly or
expresses concerns about an individual 
Change of behaviour, such as moodiness, irritability, fall out
with colleagues 
Pattern of frequent absence and/or poor timekeeping 
Individual working excessive hours/’overdoing it’ 
Standard of work falls or deadlines not met 
Lack of motivation, appearance of fatigue 

Page 41



Page 15 of 27

APPENDIX 1 
 
Maldon District Council  
Managing Work Related Stress Policy 

 

 

 
SELF ANALYSIS 

RISK ASSESSMENT 

Appendix 2 

This risk assessment should be undertaken in conjunction with any other generic 
risk assessments or as and when you are experiencing symptoms of stress at work. 

The risk assessment is in two parts, the first part is a questionnaire containing six 
questions based on the HSE Management Standards. These questions cover the six 
areas that have been found to be the main sources of stress for people at work. The 
risk assessment is designed to establish the basic levels of stress within your 
particular work environment and establish if there are problem areas that may  
require further investigation/action. 

On completion of the first questionnaire there are two outcomes: 
 

• You are operating below an acceptable level and need to seek advice/support 
• You will be directed to the most relevant additional questionnaire(s) 

 

The second part of the questionnaire contains within it six questionnaires, each one 
provides more in depth analysis of the first part. You may only need to fill in one or 
two. An analysis of the answers is provided at the end of the second part of the 
questionnaire. 

N.B. You can only analyse your OWN responses to this questionnaire. 

Page 42



Page 16 of 27

APPENDIX 1 
 
Maldon District Council  
Managing Work Related Stress Policy 

 

 

Well Being at Work – Part 1 
Please circle the response that you feel is most applicable to you: 

 
Management Standard: 

Often Sometimes Seldom Never 

 

     

Demand 
    

I am able to cope with the demands 
of my job 

    

     

Control 
    

I am able to have a say over the way 
I do my work 

    

     

Support 
    

     

I believe that I receive adequate 
support and information from my 
colleagues and superiors 

    

     

Role 
    

     

I understand my role and 
responsibilities within MDC 

    

     

Relationships 
    

     

I am being subjected to unacceptable 
behaviours (e.g. bullying) at work 

Never   Often 

 
     

Page 43



Page 17 of 27

APPENDIX 1 
 
Maldon District Council  
Managing Work Related Stress Policy 

 

 

 

Change 
    

     

MDC engages staff frequently 
when undertaking organisational 
change 

    

 
 

For each of the six areas look at the colour and corresponding comment below: 
 

GREEN 
Acceptable – no further action 
required 

AMBER 
May need attention – if this is displayed 
it is important to discuss the issue 
identified in the question with your line 
manager. There is clearly room for 
improvement or adaptation of the 
procedures in place in your workplace. 

RED 
Priority area – should any of your 
answers be coloured red, this indicates 
that this particular area requires you to 
complete a second more detailed 
questionnaire. 

 
 

For example if you have a red in the area 
‘change’ please proceed to the specific 
questionnaire on ‘change’. 

Page 44



Page 18 of 27

APPENDIX 1 
 
Maldon District Council  
Managing Work Related Stress Policy 

 

 

Well Being at Work – Part 2 
 
At this stage you should have already completed the first questionnaire. 

 
If not please return to the first section. 

 
The first questionnaire has directed you towards a second questionnaire because 
one (or more) of the following areas was highlighted as a potential problem in the 
previous questionnaire: 

• Demands 
• Control 
• Support 
• Relationships 
• Role 
• Change 

 

The next questionnaire(s) is designed to establish more specifically what those 
problems may be in the specific area. 

N.B. As before you can analyse your OWN responses to this questionnaire 

Page 45



Page 19 of 27

APPENDIX 1 
 
Maldon District Council  
Managing Work Related Stress Policy 

 

 

Demands 
 

The following four questions relate to stress caused by demands in your workplace. 
Please circle the box that most accurately reflects how you feel about your job at the 
moment. 

Please tick only one box for each question. 
 

Do you have 
to work very 
fast? 

Never/Almost 
never 

Seldom Sometimes Often 

Do you have 
to work very 
intensively? 

Never/Almost 
never 

Seldom Sometimes Often 

Do you have 
enough time 
to do 
everything? 

Often Sometimes Seldom Never/Almost 
never 

 
 

About consistency and clarity regarding your job: 
 

Do different 
groups at 
work demand 
things from 
you that you 
think are hard 
to combine? 

Never/Almost 
never 

Seldom Sometimes Often 

 
 

Control 
 

The following fifteen questions relate to stress caused by control in your workplace. 
Please circle the box that most accurately reflects how you feel about your job at the 
moment. 

Page 46



Page 20 of 27

APPENDIX 1 
 
Maldon District Council  
Managing Work Related Stress Policy 

 

 

Please tick only one box for each question. 
 

Does your job 
provide you 
with a variety 
of interesting 
thinks? 

Often Sometimes Seldom Never/almost 
never 

Is your job 
boring? 

Never/almost 
never 

Seldom Sometimes Often 

 
 

Concerning your particular work: 
 

Do you have 
to do the 
same thing 
over and over 
again? 

Never/almost 
never 

Seldom Sometimes Often 

Do you have 
the possibility 
of learning 
new things 
through your 
work? 

Often Sometimes Seldom Never 

Does your 
work demand 
a high level of 
skill or 
expertise? 

Often Sometimes Seldom Never 

Does your job 
require you to 
take the 
initiative? 

Often Sometimes Seldom Never 

Do you have 
a choice in 
deciding how 
you do your 
work? 

Often Sometimes Seldom Never 

Page 47



Page 21 of 27

APPENDIX 1 
 
Maldon District Council  
Managing Work Related Stress Policy 

 

 

 

Do you have 
a choice in 
deciding what 
you do at 
work? 

Often Sometimes Seldom Never 

 
 

About your position at work: How often do these statements apply? 
 

 
Others take 
decisions 
concerning 
my work 

Never/almost 
never 

Seldom Sometimes Often 

I have a good 
deal of say in 
decisions 
about work 

Often Sometimes Seldom Never 

I have a say 
in my own 
work speed 

Often Sometimes Seldom Never 

My working 
time can be 
flexible 

Often Sometimes Seldom Never 

I can decide 
when to take 
a break 

Often Sometimes Seldom Never 

I have a say 
in choosing 
with whom I 
work 

Often Sometimes Seldom Never 

I have a great 
deal of say in 
planning my 
work 
environment 

Often Sometimes Seldom Never 

Page 48



Page 22 of 27

APPENDIX 1 
 
Maldon District Council  
Managing Work Related Stress Policy 

 

 

Support 
 

The following six questions relate to stress caused by support in your workplace. 
Please circle the box that most accurately reflects how you feel about your job at the 
moment. 

Please only tick one box for each question. Please complete all three sections. 

 
Support from colleagues – when you are having difficulties at work: 

 

How often do 
you get help 
and support 
your 
colleagues? 

Often Sometimes Seldom Never/almost 
never 

How often are 
your 
colleagues 
willing to 
listen to your 
work related 
problems? 

Often Sometimes Seldom Never/almost 
never 

 
 

Support from superiors – when you are having difficulties at work: 
 
 

How often do 
you get help 
and support 
from your 
immediate 
superior? 

Often Sometimes Seldom Never/almost 
never 

How often is 
your 
immediate 
superior 
willing to 
listen to your 
problems? 

Often Sometimes Seldom Never/almost 
never 

Page 49



Page 23 of 27

APPENDIX 1 
 
Maldon District Council  
Managing Work Related Stress Policy 

 

 

 
 

Information from superiors – about consistency and clarity regarding your job: 
 
 

Do you get 
sufficient 
information 
from line 
management 
(your 
superiors)? 

Often Sometimes Seldom Never/almost 
never 

Do you get 
consistent 
information 
from line 
management 
(your 
superiors)? 

Often Sometimes Seldom Never/almost 
never 

 
 

Relationships 
 

The following six questions relate to stress caused by relationships in your 
workplace. Please circle the box that most accurately reflects how you feel about 
your job at the moment. 

Please tick one box for each question. 
 
 

Does MDC have an 
effective policy to prevent 
unacceptable behaviour 
(bullying and harassment) at 
work? 

Yes Don’t know No 

Does MDC have effective 
procedures that enable you 
to raise concerns about the 
behaviour of others? 

Yes Don’t know No 

Page 50



Page 24 of 27

APPENDIX 1 
 
Maldon District Council  
Managing Work Related Stress Policy 

 

 

 
 

I know MDC’s policy for 
dealing with unacceptable 
behaviour at work 

Yes No 

I am aware of the 
consequences of breaching 
the organisations policy on 
unacceptable behaviour at 
work 

Yes No 

 
 

Do you work 
in partnership 
with your line 
manager to 
tackle 
unacceptable 
behaviour at 
work? 

Often Sometimes Seldom Never/almost 
never 

I am 
subjected to 
unacceptable 
behaviour at 
work and this 
has affected 
my health 

Never/almost 
never 

Seldom Sometimes Often 

 
 

Role 
 

The following four questions relate to stress caused by roles in your workplace. 
Please circle the box that most accurately reflects how you feel about your job at the 
moment. 

Please only tick one box for each question. 
 
 

I understand 
how my work 
fits into the 
overall aim of 
MDC 

Often Sometimes Seldom Never/almost 
never 

Page 51



Page 25 of 27

APPENDIX 1 
 
Maldon District Council  
Managing Work Related Stress Policy 

 

 

 

I often have 
several 
people giving 
me work and I 
am not 
always clear 
about what I 
am expected 
to do 

Never/almost 
never 

Seldom Sometimes Often 

I have a clear 
plan of work 
which is 
agreed by 
myself and 
my line 
manager 

Often Sometimes Seldom Never/almost 
never 

I am 
encourages to 
talk to my 
manager at 
an early stage 
if I am not 
clear about 
my priorities 
or the nature 
of the task to 
be  
undertaken 

Often Sometimes Seldom Never/almost 
never 

 
 

Change 
 

The following four questions relate to stress caused by organisational change in your 
workplace. Please circle the box that most accurately reflects how you feel about 
your job at the moment. 

Please only tick one box for each question. 
 
 

I receive 
information 
about planned 
organisational 

Often Sometimes Seldom Never/almost 
never 

Page 52



Page 26 of 27

APPENDIX 1 
 
Maldon District Council  
Managing Work Related Stress Policy 

 

 

 

change at an 
early stage 

    

I am given 
enough 
information to 
enable me to 
understand 
why 
organisational 
change needs 
to happen 

Often Sometimes Seldom Never/almost 
never 

MDC 
communicates 
with 
employees 
regularly  
when going 
through 
change 

Often Sometimes Seldom Never/almost 
never 

I have the 
opportunity to 
comment and 
ask questions 
about 
organisation 
change 
before, during 
and after it 
has happened 

Often Sometimes Seldom Never/almost 
never 

Page 53



Page 27 of 27

APPENDIX 1 
 
Maldon District Council  
Managing Work Related Stress Policy 

 

 

Part 2 – Analysis of Answers 
 
 

 

GREEN 
Acceptable – no further action 
required. 

AMBER 
May need attention – if this is 
displayed it is important to discuss 
the issue identified in the question 
with your line manager. 
There is clearly room for improvement 
or adaptation of the procedures in 
place in your workplace. 

RED 
Priority area – should this colour be 
displayed this indicates that this 
particular area requires immediate 
attention. 

 
 

Carry out actions for amber and make 
an appointment with Occupational 
Health Services/Counselling Service 

 

Page 54



APPENDIX 2 
Maldon District Council Equality Analysis  
Please complete the questions below as fully as possible - the boxes will expand to accommodate your text. Please include the document version in the footer below.  

 Document Version (1) November 2016  

 
Title 
Council Tax Support scheme for 2017-18 

Date 
November 2016  

Officer Preparing 
Al Morrell 
 

1. Background 
 
1.1 Description of proposal / policy / service (Including aims, outcomes and in the case of an existing service how long it has been delivered in its current 
format) 
 
Council Tax Support aims to help people with low incomes to meet their Council Tax obligations, covering payment of Council Tax and 
Discounting of Council Tax 
 
The aim of Council Tax Support is  
• To have a fair and equitable scheme 
• To maintain support for particularly vulnerable people within the constraints imposed by Government policy 
 
The service areas or partner agencies involved are  
• Maldon District Council 
• Any authority that can levy a charge to contribute to Council tax 
• Essex authorities who are sharing the scheme  
• All Essex precepting authorities 
• Department for Work and Pensions 
• Department for Communities and Local Government 
 
1.2 Who are the users of the proposal / policy / service (Refer to data held about the users of the service i.e. numbers of users, demographic breakdown. 
Having this information is important to understand which sectors of the community might be affected. If that is not available refer to the demographic data held on the 
intranet.)   
 
Broadly, this affects those liable for Council Tax within the District and adults on a low income with low savings  
 
There are 3503 Council Tax Support Claimants* of which 1545 are working age.  The breakdown of which is as follows  
(*as at 21 November 2016) 
 
 
 

P
age 55



APPENDIX 2 
Maldon District Council Equality Analysis  
Please complete the questions below as fully as possible - the boxes will expand to accommodate your text. Please include the document version in the footer below.  

 Document Version (1) November 2016  

 Elderly Working Age Total 
Pension Credit 1135 0 1135 
Family Premium 0 200 200 
Severe Disability Premium  158  
Disability Premium  60  
Income Support 0 289 289 
Job Seekers Allowance 0 219  
Carers Premium  97  
Disabled Child Premium  11  
Working but in receipt of Council 
Tax Support 

   
 

1.3 Have users been consulted with? (Have you carried out consultation with users or stakeholders while drawing up the proposal / policy / service? For example, 
have you carried out a formal consultation, discussed the issue with a Friends/User Group or consulted with stakeholders? If so, outline the results and how it has informed 
your plans. It’s also important to show whether the target audience was reached during the consultation.)  
 
A six-week public consultation was carried out from 12 September 2016.  The consultation was publicised via a press release, the Council’s 
website, regular Social Media updates, outgoing mail to benefit and Council Tax residents and email alerts.   Partners and stakeholders were 
also directly advised i.e. advice and support agencies, housing providers.   
 
The consultation results will be fed in to this process and are included here.  
 
1.4 If the analysis is regarding an existing Service, what are users’ views of that Service? (Base your view on evidence such as satisfaction 
surveys, levels of compliments and levels of complaints).  
 
The Revenues and Benefits team is a high performing team that regularly achieves performance within the  
 
During 2015-16 there were 12 complaints related to the Revenues and Benefits service.  However, during the same period the team dealt with 
in excess of 23,000 items of work.  
 
  

P
age 56



APPENDIX 2 
Maldon District Council Equality Analysis  
Please complete the questions below as fully as possible - the boxes will expand to accommodate your text. Please include the document version in the footer below.  

 Document Version (1) November 2016  

2. Equality Aims – consider how the proposal / policy / service meets the three Equality Aims listed in the Equality Act. 
 
Aim How does the proposal / policy / service meet 

the equality aim?  
Action or addition needed in order that the proposal / 
policy / service meets the aim?   

2.1 To eliminate 
unlawful discrimination, 
harassment and 
victimisation 
 
 

• Higher Rate Disability benefits will continue to 
be disregarded thereby protecting those with 
specific long term conditions who fall within 
this group. Without such action to protect this 
group the policy could potentially be 
discriminatory.  There is also an Exceptional 
Hardship Scheme which can assist customers 
with specific circumstances.   

None required  
 
 
 

2.2 To advance equality 
of opportunity between 
people who share a 
protected characteristic 
and those who do not 
 
 

• Older people are protected in the policy, which 
follows specific Government Regulations.  

• Parents who receive a child benefit will 
continue to have this disregarded as part of 
the CTS calculation, which is consistent with 
the Council’s duty to safeguard and promote 
the welfare of children. 

• Higher rate Disability Benefits will continue to 
be disregarded thereby protecting those with 
specific long term conditions who fall within 
this group.  

• In 2014 it was also agreed that Lone Parents 
receive a disregard of £15 per week from 
Child Maintenance payments  

• A hardship fund exists to ensure provision for 
those residents who have exceptional 
circumstances.   

 

2.3 To foster good 
relations between those 
who share a protected 
characteristic and those 
who do not  

• The scheme remains means tested so the 
scope for discrimination is limited.  All working 
age customers  

 

 

P
age 57



APPENDIX 2 
Maldon District Council Equality Analysis  
Please complete the questions below as fully as possible - the boxes will expand to accommodate your text. Please include the document version in the footer below.  

 Document Version (1) November 2016  

3. Equality Impacts – examine how the proposal / policy / service impacts on the community. Base the analysis on evidence. Attach 
additional documents if necessary.   
 
Impacts Positive 

impact 
(X) 

 

Could 
adversely 
impact (X)

No  
impact 

(X)   
How different groups could be 
affected: Summary of impacts 

Actions to reduce negative or 
increase positive impact  

3.1 Age   
(What will the impact be on 
different age groups such as 
younger or older people?) 

 
 

 
 
 

 Older People (60+) are specifically 
protected under Government 
Regulations 
 
 
 

 

3.1 Age   
(What will the impact be on 
different age groups such as 
younger or older people?) 

 
 

 
 
 

  Due to the protection afforded to those 
of pensionable age, customers of 
working age are impacted directly by 
any changes to the scheme.  
 
People over 18 of working age will 
potentially be required to pay more. 

Parents will continue to have Child 
Benefit disregarded in the CTS 
calculation which is consistent with 
the Council’s duty to safeguard and 
promote the welfare of children.  
 
The Council will continue to provide 
information and advice on income 
maximisation. 

3.2 Disability 
(Consider all disabilities such as 
hearing loss, dyslexia etc as well 
as access issues for wheelchair 
users where appropriate)    

   

People with disabilities who are below 
pensionable age may need to pay 
more.  
 
 
 
 
 

Higher Rate Disability Benefits 
continue to be disregarded (i.e. 
Disability Living Allowance) thereby 
protecting those with specific long 
term conditions. 
 
A hardship fund exists to ensure 
provision for those residents who 
have exceptional circumstances.   
 
 
 

P
age 58



APPENDIX 2 
Maldon District Council Equality Analysis  
Please complete the questions below as fully as possible - the boxes will expand to accommodate your text. Please include the document version in the footer below.  

 Document Version (1) November 2016  

3.3 Pregnancy and 
Maternity 
(Think about pregnancy, new and 
breastfeeding Mums) 
 
 

   Removal of the family premium 
(currently an allowance of £17.45 per 
week) in line with the Government’s 
changes for Housing Benefit will only 
affect those families who are working 
age and not claiming “passported” 
benefits such as Universal Credit and 
Income Support. 
 
New working age residents may see a 
reduction in support and some 
households with children will pay 
more.   
 
With regard to limiting the number of 
dependent children in the CTS 
calculation, households who have a 
third or subsequent child after 1 April 
2017 may receive less support than 
claimants who have more children 
born before that date. This amounts to 
an additional premium of £66.90 per 
week (for a child of any age).  
 
This would bring the scheme in line 
with the Government’s changes for 
Housing Benefit.   
 

 

3.4 Sex 
(is the service used more by one 
gender and are the sexes given 
equal opportunity?) 

   CTS is means tested and therefore 
gender is not a factor in the calculation 
of support.  
 

 

P
age 59



APPENDIX 2 
Maldon District Council Equality Analysis  
Please complete the questions below as fully as possible - the boxes will expand to accommodate your text. Please include the document version in the footer below.  

 Document Version (1) November 2016  

3.5 Gender Reassignment 
(Is there an impact on people 
who are going through or who 
have completed Gender 
Reassignment?) 

   CTS is means tested and therefore 
gender is not a factor in the calculation 
of support 
 

 

3.6 Religion or belief 
(Includes not having a religion or 
belief) 

   CTS is means tested and therefore 
religion is not a factor in the calculation 
of support 
 

 

3.7 Sexual Orientation 
(What is the impact on 
heterosexual, lesbian, gay or 
bisexual people?) 

   CTS is means tested and therefore 
this characteristic is not a factor in the 
calculation of support 
 

 

3.8 Race 
(Includes ethnic or national 
origins including Gypsies and 
Travellers) 

   CTS is means tested and therefore 
this characteristic is not a factor in the 
calculation of support.  

 

3.9 Socio-Economic Group 
(Will people of any particular 
socio-economic group be 
particularly affected?) 
 

   Council Tax Support is designed to 
help people who have restricted 
incomes. Any additional changes to 
the proposed scheme will therefore 
have an impact on those who claim 
support – particularly those of working 
age.   

 

4. Is there a Cumulative Impact? (If the same group is the subject of many changes or reductions the overall impact is much greater. Consider what else is 
happening within Maldon District Council that may have an impact and also what we know is happening elsewhere (such as Essex County Council). See Guidance for 
further advice.)  
 
The requirement to introduce a local Council Tax scheme and to make savings has been introduced via Government policy so each year our 
scheme must be reviewed and a proposal must be pursued following a public consultation. 
 
Whilst the authority may choose to allocate funding to ensure full protection for all customers, to date this has not been considered to be 
financially sustainable.  Furthermore, the results from public consultations would appear to agree that customers claiming support should pay 
towards their Council Tax.   
 

P
age 60



APPENDIX 2 
Maldon District Council Equality Analysis  
Please complete the questions below as fully as possible - the boxes will expand to accommodate your text. Please include the document version in the footer below.  

 Document Version (1) November 2016  

5. Outcome  
 
5.1 Consider all the analysis and evidence above and indicate  
 
(1) No change needed   (2) Adjust   (3) Adverse impact but continue   (4) Stop, remove the proposal / policy / service    

 
 
5.2 Adjustments 
If option (2) above is selected please detail what adjustments are needed, who is responsible and how that will be reviewed. Also 
outline how that will be agreed (i.e. Committee, CMT).      
 
 
 
 
       
5.3 Decision Making (How will this equality analysis be taken into account during the decision making process? For example will it be included with a report to 
Committee/CMT? Will it be considered at department level or by a Head of Service? How will community/stakeholders views be taken into account?)   
 
The Equality analysis will be included within the decision making process which includes consideration at  
 
• Finance and Corporate Services Committee on 29 November 2016   
• Full Council on 15 December 2016  
 
 
6.0 Next Steps  
 
6.1 If there was a lack of evidence or data held on which to base this assessment, how will that gap be addressed for the future?   
 
Not applicable 
 
 
6.2 Summary of actions highlighted within this analysis (Include how this will be picked up within service/work plans)  
 
  

P
age 61



APPENDIX 2 
Maldon District Council Equality Analysis  
Please complete the questions below as fully as possible - the boxes will expand to accommodate your text. Please include the document version in the footer below.  

 Document Version (1) November 2016  

6.3 Arrangements for future monitoring of equality impact of this proposal / policy / service  
 
To be reviewed at least annually, or where relevant changes occur which may have an impact. 
 
6.4 Approved by (Manager or Head of Service signature and date) 
 
Sue Green (Group Manager: Customers)  
 
 

P
age 62



APPENDIX 2 
Maldon District Council Equality Analysis  
Please complete the questions below as fully as possible - the boxes will expand to accommodate your text. Please 
include the document version in the footer below.  

 Document Version (1) November 2016  

 

Page 63



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 3

Capital Bids for 2017/18

Original Original Original 

2017 / 18 2018 / 19 2019 / 20

Ref £000 £000 £000

1 SF
PC and Printer Replacement Programme (Ongoing replacement of 
equipment) 35 35 35

2 SF

IT project officer - One Fixed term post to assist with the rollout of a 
number of key IT capital projects such as Share point, CRM) - 2nd year 
(project agreed last year )

50

3 SF Email replacement - Upgrade of Exchange and Enterprise Vault 60
4 SI Replacement of polling booths 40

Essential E
Service Failure SF
Service Improvement SI

Project Title & DescriptionProject Category

Finance and Corporate 
Services Committee

P
age 65



APPENDIX 3

Capital Bids for 2017 / 18

Original Original Original 
2017 / 18 2018 / 19 2019 / 20

Ref £000 £000 £000

1 SI

Parks Vehicle - Rolling replacement programme.  The Council replaces 1 of the vehicles used by 
the Parks and Countryside Team each year to ensure that they are all fit for purpose and reliable. 
This project seeks to replace the eldest transit type vehicle within the fleet with a new model.  A 
further vehicle will be required in 2018-19. 

22 22

3 SI

Amphitheatre Fencing - To create fencing for charging round the Amphitheatre.  A possible bid to 
purchase better quality temporary fencing for area surrounding the Amphitheatre.  To create an 
area in which events can be held and a charge for entry can be made leaving other parts free as 
normal.

10

4 SI

All Weather Car Parking Improvements - The Park welcomes between 400-500K visitors each 
year and generate significant amount of car parking income.  Over the last few years the Council 
has invested in improved winter car parking. This project sets to complete the works started by 
upgrading the aesthetics of the winter car parking areas as well as making improvements to the 
main field. During busy periods parking will be more easily controlled increasing parking capacity. 
Improvements to surfacing will reduce damage to green areas during poorer weather and enable 
the grassed area to be used for parking in a controlled way. This is likely to assist visitors and 
improve their experience when using the park.  Increased areas of all weather surface will enable 
events to take place in poorer weather without causing lasting damage to the fields which will 
increase income

60 50

5 SI

New Accessible Play site - The Council will receive £52K of Section 106 funds from the 
Lighterman Place (Crest Nicholson) development in Maldon to improve play provision within the 
Promenade Park.  This project seeks to add to the S106 money to provide a new fully accessible 
play feature within the Promenade Park (by the maze) for the local community and visitors.  Futher 
external funding could be sought from public sector crown sourcing www.spacehive.com or as an 
alternative to MDC directly funding through capital.  

48

6 E Park Road Repairs 55

7 E New Car Parking Signage in Town Centre & Promenade Park.  To replace all car parking signage 
to give clearer instructions on all charges and assist the general public. 14

Community Services 
Committee

Vehicle and Plant Replacement

Promenade Park, Maldon

Other Sites

Project Title & DescriptionProject Category

P
age 66



APPENDIX 3

Original Original Original 
2017 / 18 2018 / 19 2019 / 20

Ref £000 £000 £000

Project Title & DescriptionProject Category

8 SI

Improved screening of existing depot space within Riverside Park - Within Riverside Park, the 
Council operates a small depot which is used to store items for use at the park and a large 
container for waste.  The depot is next to one of the main car parks and the proposed caravan 
park. 

40

9 SF New roof for the Heybridge Cemetery Chapel 25

10 SI
Mobile welfare facility for Volunteer and Community Payback schemes to operate in locations with 
no existing built facilities or limited access to welfare facilities. Additional resource for 
events/engagement activities within Parks and Open Spaces. 

15

11 SI

Maintenance officer(s) uses a land rover type vehicle as and it is regularly used off road. It is 
getting to an age where it is becoming more costly to maintain and ideally will need replacement.  
The Capital sum is for a newer but second hand 130 or 110 vehicle. A maximum of £30k will be 
required.

30

Essential E
Service Failure SF
Service Improvement SI

P
age 67



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

Agenda Item no. 9 
Our Vision: Working in Partnership to make the Maldon District a better place to live, work and enjoy 

REPORT of 
DIRECTOR OF PLANNING AND REGULATORY SERVICES 
to 
CENTRAL AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE 
14 DECEMBER 2016 
 

Application Number FUL/MAL/16/00872 
Location Topsail Charters Limited Cooks Boatyard The Hythe Maldon 

Proposal 

Change of use of existing lease to allow for mooring of historic 
barge on campshed as public tearoom and daytime meeting room. 
Also occasional evening use as an Arts Venue. Erection of safety 
stanchions and link chain along riverside of path. 

Applicant Ms Stephanie Valentine 
Agent N/A 
Target Decision Date 16 December 2016 
Case Officer Julia Sargeant, TEL: 01621 875851 
Parish MALDON EAST
Reason for Referral to the 
Committee / Council 

Council Owned Land 

1. RECOMMENDATION 
 
To the Council: 
 
REFUSAL for the reasons detailed in Section 8 of this report. 

 

2. SITE MAP 

 
Please see overleaf. 

  

Page 69

Agenda Item 9



 

Agenda Item no. 9 
 

 

Page 70



 

Agenda Item no. 9 
 

3. SUMMARY 

 
3.1 Proposal / brief overview, including any relevant background information 
 
3.1.1 The application site relates to an existing barge mooring located at Cooks Boatyard 

along The Hythe in Maldon.  The application site relates directly to the barge 
moorings although Cooks Boatyard also encompasses a workshop and storage yard.  
The application site is located outside of the development boundary for Maldon, and 
within the Maldon Conservation Area as well as the designated Coastal Zone as per 
the adopted Local Plan.  The application site is also located within a designated Site 
of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI).   

 
3.1.2 To the immediate north west of the application site is the River Bailiff’s Hut with 

further mororings beyond along the quayside.  To the immediate south is the Cooks 
Yard workshop also leased by the applicant and to the south east of the application 
site is the promenade park and associated leisure uses.   

 
3.1.3 Cooks Boatyard is leased by the applicant from the Council and planning permission 

is sought for change of use of existing lease to allow for mooring of historic barge on 
campshed as public tearoom and daytime meeting room. The proposal also includes 
occasional evening use as an Arts Venue as well as the erection of safety stanchions 
and a link chain along the riverside of the quay adjacent to the mooring.  It should be 
noted that the lease from the Council to the applicant is not a planning consideration. 

 
3.1.4 The application form states that the proposed A3 tearoom use would open seven days 

a week from 10:00 – 17:00 hours.  The evening use as an arts venue would also 
potentially operate up to seven days a week from 19:00 – 23:00 hours.   

 
3.1.5 It is stated within the application that the business operating from Cooks Boatyard is 

Topsail Charters who have purchased a historic Thames Barge known as 
‘Resourceful’ which would be used to house the proposed tearoom and venue.  Whilst 
the barge would primarily be moored on the campshed berth alongside the path she 
may have to be moved occasionally to allow another barge to use that berth for repair 
work and in that instance she would operate on an alternative berth.  The barge was 
built in 1931 and is registered with National Historic Ships.  She is sister ship to the 
Maldon based ‘Reminder’.  The application goes on to state that the continued upkeep 
of the historic barge fleet operated by Topsail Charters has become increasingly 
challenging and the proposed tearoom is the first stage of a longer term plan to 
develop the site at Cooks Yard into an enhanced visitor experience and sustainable 
income steam for the fleet. 

 
3.2 Conclusion 
 
3.2.1 The proposed development is considered a ‘less vulnerable’ use as detailed within the 

National Planning Practice Guide (NPPG) which is considered to be inappropriate 
within flood zone 3b which is defined as the functional floodplain.  As such the 
proposed development would be contrary to the guidance and advice contained within 
the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) as well as the NPPG, and policy D5 
of the Maldon District Local Development Plan (LDP). 

 

Page 71



 

Agenda Item no. 9 
 

3.2.2 Whilst no objection is raised to the visual impact of the barge the proposed use of the 
barge as a tearoom and arts venue at the application site would fail to preserve or 
enhance the special character of the Maldon Conservation Area, as is required by 
s.72(1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990.  The 
development would also be contrary to policies BE1, BE13 and CC12 of the adopted 
Replacement Local Plan (RLP), the NPPF and policies D1 and D3 of the submitted 
LDP. 

 
3.2.3 The application site is in close proximity to residential dwellings and insufficient 

information has been submitted to demonstrate that the proposed development would 
operate without resulting in material harm to the amenity of neighbouring occupiers 
through noise and disturbance.  The proposed development would therefore be 
contrary to RLP policies BE1 and CON5 and LDP policy D1.   

 
3.2.4 Furthermore the application site is located within the Maldon and Heybridge Central 

Area (MHCA) where Policy S5 of the submitted LDP states that ‘development and 
regeneration will take place in accordance with a masterplan endorsed by the 
Council’.  This proposal has come forward in isolation for a use that does not 
integrate with the whole offer that Hythe Quay presents in the masterplan.  It is 
considered that the proposed development, if allowed, would prejudice the outcome 
of the Maldon and Heybridge Central Area, contrary to Policy S5 of the LDP. 

 
3.2.5 It is acknowledged that the application has potential positive impacts which weigh in 

its favour, such as the potential for job creation and an enhanced tourism offer.  
However, in this instance the development is not acceptable in principle due to flood 
risk and the material harm that the development would cause, as summarised above, 
would not be outweighed by any potential benefits of the development.   

 

4. MAIN RELEVANT POLICIES 

 
Members’ attention is drawn to the list of background papers attached to the agenda. 

 
4.1 National Planning Policy Framework 2012 including paragraphs: 

• 7 

• 14 

• 17 

• 58 

• 64 

• 100 

• 126 
 
4.2 Maldon District Replacement Local Plan 2005 – Saved Policies: 

• S2 – Development Outside Development Boundaries 

• BE1 - Design of New Development and Landscaping. 

• BE13 – Development in Conservation Areas 

• CON5 – Pollution Prevention 

Page 72



 

Agenda Item no. 9 
 

• CC2 – Development Affecting a Nationally Designated Nature Conservation 
Site 

• CC6 – Landscape Protection 

• CC11 – The Coastal Zone 

• CC12 – Maldon Waterside Area 

• T1 - Sustainable Transport and Location of New Development  

• T2 - Transport Infrastructure in New Developments  

• T8 - Vehicle Parking Standards. 
 
4.3 Maldon District Local Development Plan submitted to the Secretary of State for 

Examination-in-Public on 25 April 2014: 

• S1 - Sustainable Development 

• S5 – Maldon and Heybridge Central Area 

• S8 – Settlement Boundaries and the Countryside 

• D1 - Design Quality and Built Environment 

• D3 – Conservation and Heritage Assets 

• D5 – Flood Risk and Coastal Management 

• E5 – Tourism 

• N2 – Natural Environment and Biodiversity 

• T2 - Accessibility 
 
4.4 Relevant Planning Guidance / Documents: 

• National Planning Policy Guidance (NPPG) 

• Essex Design Guide 

• Car Parking Standards 
 

5. MAIN CONSIDERATIONS 

 
5.1 Principle of Development 
 
5.1.1 The application site is located within Flood Zone 3b defined by the NPPG ‘Flood 

Risk and Coastal Change’ as the functional floodplain, this zone comprises land 
where water has to flow and be stored in times of flood.  The vulnerability of the 
proposed development as per NPPG table 2 ‘Flood Risk vulnerability Classification’ 
is ‘less vulnerable’ which is considered an inappropriate development in flood zone 
3b as per table 3 of the NPPG.  The principle of the proposed development is 
therefore not supported.  Flood risk is considered in more detail later within this 
report. 

 
  

Page 73



 

Agenda Item no. 9 
 

5.2 Design, Impact on the Character and Appearance of the Area and Maldon 
Conservation Area 

 
5.2.1 The NPPF advises on good design and in paragraph 56 states that: 

 
‘The Government attaches great importance to the design of the built environment.  
Good design is a key aspect of sustainable development, is indivisible from good 
planning, and should contribute positively to making places better for people.’ 
 

5.2.2 Such design principles are dealt with by local plan policy BE1 which seeks to ensure 
that new development is compatible with its surroundings in terms of design, scale, 
layout, appearance and architectural style, and make a positive contribution to the 
landscape and open countryside.  It should be noted that design is not just about how 
buildings will appear visually but also how buildings function and relate to their 
surroundings, with regard to sustainable development.  Submitted LDP policy D1 
deals with design quality and the built environment and is applicable to the 
consideration of this application. 

 
5.2.3 Furthermore the core planning principles of the NPPF includes recognition of the 

intrinsic character and beauty of the countryside.  Paragraph 109 of the NPPF advises 
that valued landscapes should be enhanced and protected.  RLP policies CC6 and 
CC11 are also relevant to the consideration of this application and seek to ensure that 
no harm is caused to the coastal landscape character of the locality of the application 
site. 

 
5.2.4 The application site is also located within the Maldon Conservation Area.  

Conservation Areas are ‘Areas of Special Architectural or Historic Interest, the 
character or appearance of which is desirable to preserve or enhance.’ (Planning 
(Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990).  Any new development 
therefore has to be assessed against Local Plan Policy BE13 as well as Policy D3 of 
the Local Development Plan and the guidance contained within the NPPF to ensure 
that it would preserve or enhance the character or appearance of the Maldon 
Conservation Area.   

 
5.2.5 In terms of actual design and coastal landscape impact the development is considered 

acceptable as the barge ‘Resourceful’ which would be moored at the application site 
is a historic boat in its own right and would appear visually in keeping with the site 
and the Maldon Conservation Area.  However, it is the use that both the Conservation 
Officer and the Urban Design Officer have raised concerns with as it will impact on 
the character and appearance of the working boatyard.  

 
5.2.6 The Conservation Officer has advised that the positive contribution which Cooks 

Boatyard makes to special character of the Maldon Conservation Area derives not so 
much from the appearance of the boats and buildings than from its active use as a boat 
repair yard.  There is a legitimate concern that running a tearoom off a boat in one of 
the berths (which are meant for boats undergoing repair) could put Cooks long-term 
function as a boat-repair yard under threat which would dilute its historic role and 
identity.  

 

Page 74



 

Agenda Item no. 9 
 

5.2.7 Policy CC12 of the RLP deals with the Maldon Waterside Area which the application 
site lies within.  This policy states that development will only be permitted if the 
following criteria are met: 

a) it consolidates or introduces a use which is beneficial to retaining the working 
waterside character of the area, and 

b) it enhances the waterside character of the area. 
 
5.2.8 The preamble to this policy states that the southern bank of the Blackwater at Maldon 

waterfront derives its character from the combination of the variety of traditional 
water-orientated land uses.  It is important that any development that is permitted in 
this area seeks to retain this character.  The installation of a tearoom on a part of the 
river front which has historically been reserved for boat repair threatens to undermine 
this objective. 

 
5.2.9 It is considered that whilst no objection is raised to the visual impact of the barge the 

proposed use of the barge as a tearoom and arts venue at the application site would 
fail to preserve or enhance the special character of the Maldon Conservation Area, as 
is required by s.72(1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 
1990.  The development would also be contrary to policies BE1, BE13 and CC12 of 
the adopted RLP, the NPPF and policies D1 and D3 of the submitted LDP. 

 
5.3 Impact on Residential Amenity 
 
5.3.1 RLP policy BE1 states that new development will be permitted if they are compatible 

with their surroundings, and/or improve the surrounding location in terms of the effect 
on the safety and or amenity of neighbouring properties or the occupiers therein.  The 
LDP policy relevant to this section is policy D1 which deals with Design Quality and 
Built Environment and considers similar residential amenity considerations. 

 
5.3.2 The nearest neighbouring dwellings to the application site are located in St Mary's 

Lane and The Hythe with the nearest dwellings positioned approximately 55 metres 
from the application site.  The Environmental Health Officer has raised a concern 
with the application as the neighbouring residential dwellings will be vulnerable to 
exposure from noise arising from the proposed arts venue uses.  The Environmental 
Health Officer therefore requested full details of how the residential properties will be 
protected from noise, not just from the venue but also from customer ingress and 
egress from the location. 

 
5.3.3 Whilst the applicant did submit some additional information it did not give any detail 

about the programme of events planned, the scale of those events or noise mitigation 
from the premises.  It only states that there are two other pubs in the area which whilst 
true also raises concerns about the intensification of entertainment in the evening.  
The submission also makes an assumption about their predicted clientele and what the 
noise might be like when they leave.  As this is likely to be late and possibly on 
several evenings a week Environmental Health advise that there is the potential for 
problems.  

 
5.3.4 Insufficient information has therefore been submitted to demonstrate that the 

proposed development would operate without resulting in material harm to the 
amenity of neighbouring occupiers through noise and disturbance.  The proposed 

Page 75



 

Agenda Item no. 9 
 

development would therefore be contrary to RLP policies BE1 and CON5 and LDP 
policy D1.   

 
5.4 Access, Parking and Highway Safety 
 
5.4.1 The existing vehicular access point to the site would not be altered and as such no 

objection is raised to the development on access or highway safety grounds.  
 

5.4.2 In addition, Essex County Highways have raised no objection to the proposal.  Whilst 
the application does not propose any off road parking for visitors the site is located in 
close proximity to the town centre and a number of public car parks.  No objection is 
raised to the proposed in terms of access, parking or highway safety and the proposal 
would accord with RLP policy T2 and policy T2 of the LDP. 
 

5.5 Flood Risk 
 
5.5.1 The application is located within Flood Zone 3b defined by the NPPG ‘Flood Risk 

and Coastal Change’ as the functional floodplain, this zone comprises land where 
water has to flow and be stored in times of flood.  The Environment Agency’s (EA) 
initial consultation response raised an objection to the development on flood risk 
grounds and advised that ‘at present the vulnerability of this development is unclear 
as it is not specified in table 2 of the PPG.  Where there is uncertainty we require 
LPAs to confirm the vulnerability class of the application.’ 

 
5.5.2 Following receipt of this initial consultation response the EA was advised by Officers 

that the vulnerability of the development is considered to be ‘less vulnerable’ as per 
table 2 of the NPPG.  In taking this view Officer’s have had regard to the display of 
the historic barge however this is incidental to the main use which would be as a 
tearoom and/or public assembly use which fits with the ‘less vulnerable’ uses within 
table 2 of the NPPG.  The EA has advised that if the development is considered as 
less vulnerable then they would object in principle to this application.  The EA has 
been formally consulted regarding officer’s view of the vulnerability of this 
development and any further response will be reported via members update. 

 
5.5.3 As the vulnerability of the proposed development per NPPG table 2 is less vulnerable 

the proposal is considered an inappropriate development in flood zone 3b as per table 
3 of the NPPG.  A development of this vulnerability should therefore not be allowed 
within such a high risk flood site.  The only development considered acceptable 
within flood zone 3b within the NPPG is: 
 
‘Essential infrastructure that has to be there and has passed the Exception Test, and 
water-compatible uses’ these should then ‘be designed and constructed to: 

• remain operational and safe for users in times of flood; 

• result in no net loss of floodplain storage; 

• not impede water flows and not increase flood risk elsewhere.’ 
 
5.5.4 In the light of the above assessment the proposed development would be contrary to 

the guidance and advice contained within the National Planning Policy Framework 
(NPPF) as well as the NPPG, and policy D5 of the Maldon District Local 
Development Plan. 

Page 76



 

Agenda Item no. 9 
 

5.6 Other Material Considerations 
 
5.6.1 It is important to note that Hythe Quay (and the application site) is within the Maldon 

and Heybridge Central Area (MHCA) which is made up of Maldon Central based on 
the retail function of the High Street; the Causeway Regeneration Area which is the 
largest employment area in the district and the Leisure Quarter which focuses on the 
tourism offer and the attraction of Hythe Quay and Promenade Park.  The application 
site is located within the Leisure Quarter as defined by Policy S5 of the submitted 
LDP.   

 
5.6.2 The aim of Policy S5 of the LDP is that the Central Area will continue to act as the 

focal point within the District for retail, commercial, industrial, community and 
tourism activities and will be a thriving and vibrant destination that has strong 
connections with surrounding areas and is supported by its heritage assets, waterways 
and green spaces.   

 
5.6.3 Policy S5 states that ‘development and regeneration will take place in accordance 

with a masterplan endorsed by the Council’.  To date the masterplan has been 
informed by a number of stakeholder workshops and public engagement.  The 
masterplan is a requirement of Policy S5, LDP and is a key delivery tool for 
development to come forward.  The advanced stage of preparation includes a draft 
Masterplan and Action Plan for public consultation winter 2016. 

 
5.6.4 The masterplan is responding to stakeholder engagement and key opportunities 

identified to transform Hythe Quay including: 

• Environmental Enhancements; 

• New moorings extended along the Bath Wall; 

• Seasonal/traditional Food Market; 

• Events programme; 

• Improved Links with Promenade Park and the entire waterside from 
Fullbridge to Northey Island; 

• Conversion and re-use of redundant buildings. 
 
5.6.5 Concerns have been raised by the Urban Design Officer that the application seeks 

approval of an isolated proposal for a use that does not integrate with the whole offer 
that Hythe Quay presents in the masterplan.  The Urban Design Officer also considers 
that the proposal could also impact on the existing offer that existing businesses 
provide in the vicinity and compromise the education, skills and training requirements 
set out in the Maldon District Economic Prosperity Strategy with a particular focus on 
maritime skills. 

 
5.6.6 It is noted that a previous application on land leased by the applicant for change of use 

of a boat store to marine gallery / exhibition and boat storage was refused in August 
2016 with one of the reasons of refusal relating to the development prejudicing the 
outcome of the Maldon and Heybridge Central Area master planning approach.  This 
application could also prejudice the outcome of the masterplan and should not be 
considered in isolation.  It is therefore considered that the proposal would be contrary 
to Policy S5 of the LDP.   

 

Page 77



 

Agenda Item no. 9 
 

5.6.7 It was noted that the supporting statement for the application refers to a winter barge 
tearoom having been run since 2013 which operates seven months a year.  This use 
appears to be unauthorised and therefore carries little weight as a material 
consideration.   

 

6. ANY RELEVANT SITE HISTORY 

• FUL/MAL/91/00358 - Improvements to boatyard including workshops visitor 
facilities and museum.  Approved - 09.07.1991. 

• FUL/MAL/98/00508 - Change of use to Maritime Heritage Centre 
incorporating charter boat agency visitor information point and project boat 
building.  Approved - 08.10.1998. 

• FUL/MAL/00/00205 - Construction of replacement boatshed.  Approved - 
02.06.2000. 

• FUL/MAL/07/00199 - Use to include a maritime heritage centre and gallery.  
Approved - 11.06.2007. 

• FUL/MAL/09/00152 - Change of use to include a marine gallery and 
exhibition.  Approved - 12.06.2009. 

• FUL/MAL/15/00285 - Change of use from boat store to marine 
gallery/exhibition and boat storage with associated works to the building.  To 
install a kitchen within shed to serve barge cruises. Erection of a fence to 
southern boundary of the site of the boatyard.  Refused - 12.08.2016. 

 

7. CONSULTATIONS AND REPRESENTATIONS RECEIVED 

 
7.1 Representations received from Parish / Town Councils 
 

Name of Parish / Town 
Council 

Comment Officer Response 

Maldon Town Council 

The Town Council recommends 
approval of this application as the 
proposal will encourage tourists 
to use the quay. 

Noted. 

 
7.2 Statutory Consultees and Other Organisations (summarised) 
 

Name of Statutory 
Consultee / Other 

Organisation 
Comment Officer Response 

Environment Agency 

Raise an objection on flood risk 
grounds and request the Local 
Planning Authority (LPA) to 
advise on the flood risk 
vulnerability of the development 
as it is unclear.  If the 
development is considered as less 
vulnerable then we would object 
in principle to this application.  

See section 5.2 (page 
12) of report. 

Page 78



 

Agenda Item no. 9 
 

Name of Statutory 
Consultee / Other 

Organisation 
Comment Officer Response 

Table 3 of Planning Policy 
Guidance (PPG) advises it is 
inappropriate development in 
flood zone 3b. 

Essex County Council 
Highways 

No objection. Noted. 

Maldon Harbour 
Improvement 
Commissioners 

Object for the following reasons: 

• Loss of facility for local barge 
operators; 

• Negative impact on tourism 
(as yachts unable to moor up); 

• Black and grey water disposal; 

• Health and safety concerns 
regarding access and egress; 

• Negative impact on 
conservation area; 

• Potential reduction in 
employment opportunities for 
those with traditional maritime 
skills; 

Noted. 

Natural England 

The proposal, if undertaken in 
strict accordance with the details 
submitted, is not likely to have a 
significant effect on the interest 
features for which Blackwater 
Estuary Ramsar and Special 
Protection Area (SPA), and Essex 
Estuaries Special Area of 
Conservation (SAC) has been 
classified. Natural England 
therefore advises an Appropriate 
Assessment is not required.   
 
The proposed development will 
not damage or destroy the interest 
features for which the Blackwater 
Estuary SSSI has been notified. 

Noted. 

 
  

Page 79



 

Agenda Item no. 9 
 

7.3 Internal Consultees (summarised) 
 

Name of Internal 
Consultee 

Comment Officer Response 

Conservation Officer 

Raises concerns that the proposal 
could put Cooks long-term 
function as a boat-repair yard 
under threat and considers that 
the proposal would fail to 
preserve or enhance the special 
character of the Maldon 
Conservation Area, as is required 
by s.72(1) of the Planning (Listed 
Buildings and Conservation 
Areas) Act 1990. 

Noted – see section 
5.2 (page 12) of 
report. 

Emergency Planner 
Requests a condition requiring a 
satisfactory flood warning and 
evacuation plan for the boat.   

Noted. 

Environmental Health 

The proposed location for the 
venue which is the barge 
"Resourceful" (yet to arrive at 
The Quay) is in proximity to 
residential properties in St Mary's 
Lane and The Hythe.  These will 
be vulnerable to exposure from 
noise arising from the proposed 
arts venue uses. 

Noted – see section 
5.3 (page 13) of 
report. 

River Baliff 

Objects to the development due 
to: 

• Altering the character of the 
oldest repair yard on the 
waterfront. This application 
is contrary to Topsail 
Charters Ltd submission as 
discussed by Members when 
applying for the lease. 

• Lack of parking 

• No agreed waste disposal 
point 

• No vehicular access 

• No lighting 

• No justification for such a 
proposal in one of the most 
important heritage sites in the 
town 

Noted – although 
details in relation to 
the lease itself are 
not a material 
planning 
consideration. 

Urban Design Officer 

Raises concerns that the proposed 
use will impact on the character 
and appearance of a working 
boatyard and that this application 

Noted – see sections 
5.2 (page 12) and 5.6 
(page 15) of report 

Page 80



 

Agenda Item no. 9 
 

Name of Internal 
Consultee 

Comment Officer Response 

seeks approval of an isolated 
proposal for a use that does not 
integrate with the whole offer that 
Hythe Quay presents in the 
masterplan.   

 
7.4 Representations received from Interested Parties (summarised) 
 
7.4.1 Letters were received objecting to the application from the following and the reasons 

for objection are summarised as set out in the table below: 

• K.A Stubbs 1 St Marys Lane Maldon Essex 

• Mr Association of Bargemen Taylor 10 Toga Close Colchester CO2 9JJ 

• Mr edward smith nether hall, main road, shotley, nether hall ipswich 

• Nick Cardy C/o Landbreach Limited Chelmer Terrace Maldon 

• Mr Adrian Riva Fenby Shipways Yard North Street Maldon 

• Jim Dines TS Rigging Ltd Downs Road Boat Yard Maldon 

• Mr Noel Probyn Hall Cottage Hall Road Heybridge Maldon 

• Landbreach Ltd Chelmer Terrace Maldon Essex 

• Mr Gerard Swift Littlebrook Maldon Road Tolleshunt D'Arcy Maldon 

• Mrs Glynis Yuill White Lodge Maypole Road Langford Maldon 

• Julie Stuchbery 31 The Avenue Witham CM8 2DN 
 

Objection Comment Officer Response 
Proposal would hinder the development 
of the Maldon & Heybridge Master Plan. 

See section 5.6 (page 15) of report. 

Loss of barge mooring and repair Facility 
in an already restricted area. 

Noted. 

Change of use outside the terms of the 
lease. 

Not a relevant material planning 
consideration. 

The granting of this application could 
lead to the gradual loss of similar 
waterside facilities that can never be re-
instated. 

See section 5.2 (page 12) of report. 

Access to proposed tearoom is dangerous. Noted. 
Cooks yard and its working berths should 
be retained.  The Hythe Quay at Maldon 
is the single most important site for the 
Thames Sailing Barge fleet. 

See section 5.2 (page 12) of report. 

The proposed "tea rooms" would sit on a 
berth traditionally used by Thames 
Sailing Barges, and located in front of 
Cooks yard, in prime position for repair 
work. Loss of this berth would take away 
a traditional and historic facility. 

See section 5.2 (page 12) of report. 

Page 81



 

Agenda Item no. 9 
 

Objection Comment Officer Response 
A tearoom at this location would have a 
major impact on the traditional maritime 
activities that make the Quay the 
attraction it is today, and which are 
irreplaceable. 

See section 5.2 (page 12) of report. 

This is a very historical site and should be 
allowed to continue to operate as such 
without the constrictions a tearoom 
facility in the heart of it. 

See section 5.2 (page 12) of report. 

How could a "tea room" sit on a working 
barge yard with public being actively 
encouraged to enter an area where heavy 
work is being carried out. 

See section 5.2 (page 12) of report. 

There are other opportunities to open a 
tea room within this vicinity but do not 
believe there are the same opportunities 
for barges to be placed on blocks and 
repaired. 

Noted. 

This campshed has always been 
exclusively for the use of barges 
undergoing repair / restoration. The 
whole area is of national importance as 
the only remaining barge yard which has 
an unbroken history going back to when 
barges were built and launched from here. 

Noted. 

If Topsail Charters do not want these 
berths and blocks maybe Maldon District 
Council should offer this part of the lease 
to someone that want to carry out barge 
repairs. 

Not a material planning consideration.  
The Council has a duty to consider the 
planning application. 

 
7.4.2 Letters were received in support of the application from the following and the 

reasons for support are summarised as set out in the table below: 

• Ralph Springett 22 Chichester Way Maldon Essex 

• Mrs Kim & Gerry Gibbs 32 The Hythe Maldon Essex 

• Judy Lea C/o Maldon Society 12 The Courtyard Spital Road Maldon 

• Laura Fulcher 12 Downs Road Maldon Essex 

• Mr Derek Beadel 38 King Street Maldon Essex 

• Mr Jonathan Nichols 42 Victoria Road Maldon Essex 

• Deirdre Haslam Pilgrims Rest 12 Downs Road Maldon 

• Mr B Mortimer 6 Midguard Way Maldon Essex 

• Mr Robert Southey 17 Volwycke Avenue Maldon Essex 

• Mr John Walker 4A King Georges Place High Street Maldon 

• Mr Philip Griffiths Ashmere 40 Holloway Road Heybridge Maldon 

• Ms Rosy Perry 10 Victoria Road Maldon Essex 

• Mr Barrie Jaimeson 253 Mundon Road Maldon Essex 

Page 82



 

Agenda Item no. 9 
 

• Ms Rosie SANDLER 12 Ulting Lane Langford Maldon 

• Heidi Gilmour 47 North Street Maldon Essex 

• Mr S Meddemenn C/o Buntings Of Maldon Buntings 89 High Street Maldon 

• Richard Walsh C/O The Society For Sailing Barge Research 39 Friars Road 
Braughing Ware 

• Mrs Nicola Timson 253 Mundon Road Maldon Essex 
 

Supporting Comment Officer Response 
Applicant supports local businesses and 
local employment. 

Noted. 

Consider the Barge tearooms will be an 
asset to the town. 

Noted. 

People will enjoy seeing a historic boat 
being used for the people of Maldon and 
offering a different dining experience. 

Noted. 

Will attract people to the quayside and 
boost other local businesses. 

Noted. 

The temporary barge tearooms have 
proved highly popular when in operation 
and this will be a distinctive addition for 
visitors to the prom. 

Noted – see section 5.6 (page 15) of 
report. 

Consider it would be a valuable asset to 
community to have such a lovely site for 
use as a meeting room and a place for 
exhibitions of local artists’ work. 

Noted. 

This is an opportunity for Maldon to have 
a really versatile space which could draw 
many visitors. 

Noted. 

Consider this would be a vibrant addition 
to the Quay with this historic barge 
enhancing the living tradition of the 
surrounding working boatyard as a 
celebration of craftsmanship and 
workmanship. 

See section 5.2 (page 12) of report. 

Proposal represents a winter and summer 
cafe that will compliment the waterfront 
and its facilities, enriching both the 
visitor and the townsfolk. 

Noted. 

Proposal will ensure there is always a 
historic barge visible at quayside. 

See section 5.2 (page 12) of report. 

Allowing Topsail Charters to operate an 
all year Tearoom will, not only enhance 
the Hythe, but also generate much needed 
revenue to maintain and improve the 
existing fleet of Hydrogen, Reminder and 
Thistle to ensure the future of these 
fantastic barges. 

Noted – see section 3.1 (page 9) of report.

If Topsail cannot generate the funds it 
needs to maintain their barges in sailing 

Noted. 

Page 83



 

Agenda Item no. 9 
 

Supporting Comment Officer Response 
condition then they may well have to 
reduce the number of barges in their fleet.  
This will not be good for the town. 
The proposal will help sustain Cooks into 
the future providing jobs for local people 
including shipwrights, carpenters and 
painters raising the profile of the yard to 
attract other similar projects and 
maintenance work. 

Noted. 

 
7.4.3 Letters were received commenting on the application from the following, 

summarised as set out in the table below: 

• Mr Colin Baldy 15 Wantz Road Maldon 

• Mr Tim Kent 4A Peacock Yard Iliffe Street London  

• Mrs Carole Geeenhalgh George Smeed Sailing Barge The Hythe Maldon 
Essex 

 
Comment Officer Response 

The application is premature as far as the 
plans for the Hythe regeneration are 
concerned. Not against the idea in 
principle however it does seem to run 
counter to the plans for the Hythe 
regeneration. 

See section 5.6 (page 15) of report. 

Suggestion that a decision be deferred 
and Topsail Charters involved in the 
planning for the Hythe. 

See section 5.6 (page 15) of report. 

Clarity is needed as to the practicalities of 
how barge-work can be carried out whilst 
the campshed is used to site a barge 
operating as a tearoom / meeting venue, 
as shown in the application.   

Noted. 

The dwindling fleet of barges need 
boatyards to get fixed at or eventually 
there will be no barges left for us to 
enjoy. 

See Section 5.2 (page 12) of report. 

There are still plenty of shipwrights in the 
area and lots of ships that need fixing. It’s 
quite clear that Cooks could return to 
purpose, but not with this kind of 
fundamental change. 

See Section 5.2 (page 12) of report. 

Page 84



 

Agenda Item no. 9 
 

Comment Officer Response 
The current custodians of Cooks have 
played a great role in keeping four barges 
busy and I understand they have gone to 
some trouble and expense to acquire S.B. 
Resourceful which is the vessel they 
intend to use as floating tearoom. It 
would therefore seem fair to allow her to 
be used as a tearoom, but far better to 
have her on the quay. 

Noted.  However, the application has to 
be determined as submitted and no 
additional moorings are shown to be 
under control of the applicant. 

 

8. REASONS FOR REFUSAL 
 
Reason for Refusal: 
1 The application site is located within Flood Zone 3b defined by the National 

Planning Practice Guidance as the functional floodplain, this zone comprises 
land where water has to flow and be stored in times of flood.  The 
vulnerability of the proposed development as per the National Planning 
Practice Guidance table 2 ‘Flood Risk vulnerability Classification’ is ‘less 
vulnerable’ which is considered an inappropriate development in flood zone 
3b.  The proposed development is therefore detrimental to the safety of future 
users of the site contrary to the guidance and advice contained within the 
National Planning Policy Framework, the National Planning Practice Guide as 
well as policy D5 of the submitted Maldon District Local Development Plan. 

2 The application site is located within the Maldon Conservation Area and 
Cooks Boatyard currently makes a positive contribution to the special 
character of the Conservation Area as well as the wider waterside location.   
Whilst no objection is raised to the visual impact of the barge the proposed use 
of the barge as a tearoom and arts venue at the application site would fail to 
preserve or enhance the special character of the Maldon Conservation Area 
and the working waterside character of the locality.  The development would 
be contrary to The National Planning Policy Framework, policies BE1, BE13 
and CC12 of the adopted Maldon District Replacement Local Plan and 
policies D1 and D3 of the submitted Maldon District Local Development Plan. 

3 The application site is in close proximity to residential dwellings in St Mary's 
Lane and The Hythe and insufficient information has been submitted to 
demonstrate that the proposed development would operate without resulting in 
material harm to the amenity of neighbouring occupiers through noise and 
disturbance.  The proposed development would therefore be contrary to The 
National Planning Policy Framework, policies BE1 and CON5 of the adopted 
Maldon District Replacement Local Plan and policy D1 of the submitted 
Maldon District Local Development Plan. 

4 The proposed development, if allowed, would prejudice the outcome of the 
Maldon and Heybridge Central Area, contrary to policy S5 of the Maldon 
District Local Development Plan which seeks to promote regeneration of 
visitor attractions and facilities through a master planning approach. 

Page 85



This page is intentionally left blank



Our Vis

REPOR
CHIEF
to 
COUN
15 DEC
 
SCHED

1. 
 

 1.1

 

2. 
 

 

3. 
 

 3.1

 
 3.2

 
 3.3

 
3.3.1 

 3.4
 
3.4.1 

sion: Working

RT of 
F EXECUT

CIL 
CEMBER 2

DULE OF M

PURPOSE

A draft sch
Council’s c

RECOMM

(i) that
Ref
Com

 
(ii) that

APP

SUMMAR

The draft S
structure ag
Disciplinar
when requi
to meet acc
the Commi
times a yea
revised acc

This has be
Corporate L

Area Plann

So far as is 
held on con
 
Extraordin

As there is 
‘developme

g in Partners

TIVE 

2016 

MEETING

E OF THE 

hedule of me
consideratio

MENDATIO

t the paragra
ference of th
mmittee be 

t subject to (
PENDIX 1

RY OF KEY

Schedule (A
greed by the
ry and Appo
ired.  The sa
cording to n
ittee’s Term
ar.  It is prop
cordingly. 

een prepared
Leadership 

ning Comm

possible, th
nsecutive w

nary Counc

likely to be
ent of strate

ship to make 

GS 2017 / 18

REPORT

eetings for t
on.   

ON 

aph headed 
he Joint Stan
arranged as

(i) above, th
be approve

Y ISSUES

PPENDIX 
e Council ex
ointments C
ame could b
need althoug
ms of Refere
posed that th

d taking into
Team and o

mittees 

he Area Plan
eeks.  

cil (Plannin

e a continue
egic and maj

the Maldon 

8 

the 2017 / 1

“Proceedin
ndards Com

s and when r

he schedule
ed. 

1) incorpor
xcept the Li

Committees,
be true of th
gh dates hav
ence states th
his provisio

o account th
other lead O

anning Com

ng) meeting

ed need duri
jor interest’

District a bet

8 municipa

ngs” be dele
mmittee and
required; 

e of meeting

rates dates f
icensing Su
 meetings o

he Joint Stan
ve been incl
hat the Com

on is deleted

he requirem
Officers.   

mittees are 

gs 

ing 2017 / 1
’ this Sched

A
tter place to 

al year is pre

eted from th
that meetin

gs for 2017 /

for all the C
b, Investiga

of which are
ndards Com
luded in the 
mmittee will
d and the sch

ments and su

on a four-w

8 to determ
dule include

Agenda Item 
live, work an

esented for 

he Terms of 
ngs of that 

/ 18 attache

Committees 
ating & 
e arranged a

mmittee whic
e draft sched
l meet at lea
hedule of m

uggestions o

weekly cycle

mine applica
s provision 

 

no. 10 
nd enjoy 

the 

ed as 

in the 

as and 
ch tends 
dule as 
ast three 

meetings 

of the 

e and 

ations of 
for 

Page 87

Agenda Item 10



 

 
 3.5

 
3.5.1 

 3.6
 
3.6.1 
 

4. 
 

 4.1

 

5. 
 

 5.1

 

6. 
 

 
 
Backgro
 
Enquiri

extraordina
It should be
times will b

Recess 

Save for the
extraordina
recess in A
meetings.  T
advertised b
 
Quarterly 

Provision h

CONCLUS

It is conside
for meeting

IMPACT O

An efficien
corporate g

IMPLICA

(i) Imp
plac

(ii) Imp

(iii) Imp

(iv) Imp
part
Scru

(v) Imp

ound Paper

ies to: Tara 

ary meetings
e noted that
be provided

e need to co
ary meetings

August and a
These reces
by Essex Co

Performan

has been ma

SION 

ered that th
gs of the Co

ON CORP

nt and effect
goals. 

TIONS 

pact on Cu
ce for the C

pact on Equ

pact on Ris

pact on Fin
ticular requi
utiny Comm

pact on the

s: None. 

Bird, Comm

s of the Cou
t these meet
d nearer the 

ontinue the 
s of the Cou

a two week r
ss’ have bee
ounty Coun

nce Reporti

ade within th

e schedule a
ouncil and it

ORATE G

tive commit

stomers – N
ouncil and i

ualities – N

sk – None.

nancial (Res
irements res

mittee. 

 Environm

mittee Servi

uncil (Coun
ting are prov
time. 

cycle of Ar
uncil (Coun
recess at Ea
en planned t
ncil. 

ing 

he Schedule

attached as 
ts Committe

GOALS 

ttee structur

None, provi
its Committ

None.  

sources an
sulting from

ment – None

ices Officer

ncil (Plannin
visional dat

rea Planning
ncil (Plannin
aster and Ch
to fall durin

e for quarter

APPENDI
ees. 

re underpins

ided that an
tees to oper

d Human)
m the operat

e. 

r, (Tel: 0162

A

ng)) to meet
tes and the f

g Committe
ng)), there is
hristmas for
ng school ho

rly reportin

IX 1 represe

s the timely

adequate fr
rate and tran

– None, un
tion of the O

21 875791).

Agenda Item 

t this requir
final dates a

ees and 
s a four wee
r non-planni
oliday dates

ng to Comm

ents a frame

y delivery of

framework i
nsact busine

nless linked 
Overview an

. 

no. 10 

rement.  
and 

ek 
ing 

s as 

mittees. 

ework 

f the 

is in 
ess. 

to any 
nd 

Page 88



APPENDIX 1 

 No MDC Meetings  MDC Council meetings  Bank Holiday  LGA Conference  School Holidays 

VERSION 1 (Nov 2016) 

SCHEDULE OF MEETINGS 2017 / 18 
KEY: 
AUDIT ...... Audit Committee (daytime meetings) 
CAC ......... Central Area Planning Committee 
CMTY ...... Community Services Committee 

F&CS ...... Finance and Corporate Services Committee 
NW .......... North Western Area Planning Committee 
O&S ........ Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

P&L ......... Planning and Licensing Committee 
SE ...........  South Eastern Area Planning Committee 

 
Monday 

M
A

Y 

1 BANK HOLIDAY 

JU
N

E 

5  

JU
LY

 

10 NW  

A
U

G
U

ST
 

14 SE  

SE
PT

EM
B

ER
 

18  

Tuesday 2  6  11  15  19  

Wednesday 3  7 O&S Q4  12  16  20 CAC  

Thursday 4 Essex County Council 
ELECTIONS 8 P&L Q4  13 COUNCIL  17  21 COUNCIL (Planning)  

Friday 5  9  14  18  22  

Monday 8  12 NW  17  21  25  

Tuesday 9  13 F&CS Q4  18  22  26 F&CS Q1  

Wednesday 10  14  19 O&S  23 CAC  27  

Thursday 11 STAT. COUNCIL  15  20 P&L 24  28  

Friday 12  16  21  25  29  

Monday 15 NW 19 SE  24  28 BANK HOLIDAY 

O
C

TO
B

ER
 

2 NW  

Tuesday 16  20  25 F&CS  29 CMTY Q1  3  

Wednesday 17  21  26  30 O&S Q1  4 O&S  

Thursday 18 COUNCIL (Planning)  22 AUDIT Q4  27  31 AUDIT Q1  5  

Friday 19  23  28  

SE
PT

EM
B

ER
 

1  6  

Monday 22 SE  26  31  4 NW  9 SE  

Tuesday 23 CMTY Q4  27  
A

U
G

U
ST

 
1  5  10 CMTY  

Wednesday 24  28 CAC  2  6  11  

Thursday 25  29 COUNCIL (Planning)  3  7 COUNCIL [8] 12  

Friday 26  30  4  8  13  

Monday 29 BANK HOLIDAY 

JU
LY

 

3  7 NW  11 SE  16  

Tuesday 30  4 CMTY  8  12  17  

Wednesday 31 CAC  5  9  13  18 CAC  

Thursday 

JU
N

 1 STANDARDS  6  10 COUNCIL (Planning)  14 P&L Q1  19 STANDARDS  

Friday 2  7  11  15  20  

  

P
age 89



APPENDIX 1 

 No MDC Meetings  MDC Council meetings  Bank Holiday  LGA Conference  School Holidays 

VERSION 1 (Nov 2016) 

Monday 

O
C

TO
B

ER
 

23  

D
EC

EM
B

ER
 

4 SE  

JA
N

U
A

R
Y 

15 SE  

FE
B

. 26  

A
PR

IL
 

9 SE  

Tuesday 24  5  16 CMTY  27 CMTY Q3  10  

Wednesday 25  6  17  28  11  

Thursday 26 COUNCIL (Planning)  7 AUDIT Q2  18  

M
A

R
C

H
 

1 P&L Q3  12 COUNCIL (Planning)  

Friday 27  8  19  2  13  

Monday 30 NW  11  22  5 NW  16  

Tuesday 31  12  23  6 F&CS Q3  17 P&L 

Wednesday 

N
O

VE
M

B
ER

 

1  13 CAC [4] 24 CAC  7  18 CAC 

Thursday 2 COUNCIL  14 COUNCIL (Planning)  25 P&L  8 COUNCIL (Planning)  19 F&CS 
Friday 3  15  26  9  20  

Monday 6 SE  18  29  12 SE 23  

Tuesday 7  19  30 F&CS  13  24  

Wednesday 8 O&S CRIME  20  31  14 O&S CRIME  25  

Thursday 9  21 COUNCIL  

FE
B

R
U

A
R

Y 

1 COUNCIL (Planning) 15  26  

Friday 10  22  2  16  27  

Monday 13  25 CHRISTMAS DAY 5 NW 19  30  

Tuesday 14  26 BOXING DAY 6  20  

M
A

Y 

1  

Wednesday 15 CAC  27  7  21 CAC 2  

Thursday 16 P&L Q2  28  8 COUNCIL  22 COUNCIL  3 Local Government 
ELECTIONS 

Friday 17  29  9  23  4  

Monday 20  

JA
N

U
A

R
Y 

20
18

 

1 NEW YEARS’ DAY 12 SE 26 AUDIT 7 BANK HOLIDAY 

Tuesday 21 CMTY Q2  2  13  27 CMTY 8  

Wednesday 22 O&S Q2  3  14 O&S Q3  28 O&S 9  

Thursday 23  4  15 AUDIT Q3  29  10  

Friday 24  5  16  30 GOOD FRIDAY 11  

Monday 27 NW  8 NW  19  

A
PR

IL
 

2 EASTER MONDAY 14  

Tuesday 28 F&CS Q2  9  20  3 NW  15  

Wednesday 29  10 O&S 21 CA 4  16  

Thursday 30  11  22 STANDARDS 5  17 STAT. COUNCIL 

Friday  1  12  23  6  18  
 

P
age 90



Our Vis

REPOR
MONIT
to 
COUN
15 DEC
 

 
APPOI

1. 
 

 1.1

 

2. 
 

 

3. 
 

 3.1

 3.2

 
 3.3

 
 3.4

sion: Working

RT of 
TORING O

CIL 
CEMBER 2

(FOR CON

INTMENT

PURPOSE

To consider
Independen

RECOMM

That the Co
four years. 

AREA FO

At a meetin
appointmen
Standards C
Mr Jonatha
(Minute No
 
Subsequent
Person(s) b

The Joint S
Monitoring
a new Indep
advertised i
Other than 
one of the r
appointed f
new expres
consider re
four years)

The Indepe
and perform

g in Partners

OFFICER 

2016 

NSIDERAT

T OF INDEP

E OF THE 

r the outcom
nt Persons u

MENDATIO

ouncil reapp

R DECISI

ng of the Co
nt of Mr No
Committee, 
an Swan as r
o. 818 refers

t decisions o
being clarifi

Standards Co
g Officer to 
pendent Per
in the local 
confirmatio

reserve Inde
for a further
ssions of int
-appointing
. 

endent Perso
m a vital rol

ship to make 

TION BY T
 - 9 DE

PENDENT

REPORT

me of the re
under the Lo

ON 

points the cu

ON / ACTI

ouncil on 7 F
orman Victo

and also th
reserve Inde
s). 

of the Coun
ed and then

ommittee, u
proceed wit
rson and tw
press and v

on from the 
ependent Pe
r term (on th
terest were r
g the two Ind

ons are a sta
le in ensurin

the Maldon 

THE JOIN
ECEMBER

T PERSON

ecent advert
ocalism Act

urrent Indep

ION 

February 20
or Hodson a
he appointm
ependent Pe

ncil resulted
n extended e

under deleg
th the neces

wo reserve In
via the Coun

existing In
ersons (Mr S
he basis of t
received.  It
dependent P

atutory appo
ng that the C

District a bet

T STANDA
R 2016) 

N(S) 

tisement / re
t 2011. 

pendent Per

013 it was r
as Independe

ment of Mr S
ersons to th

d in the term
eventually to

ation from t
ssary arrang
ndependent 
ncil’s websi
dependent P
S R Anthon
the previous
t is therefor
Persons for 

ointment un
Councillor C

A
tter place to 

ARDS COM

ecruitment p

rsons for a f

resolved to c
ent Person t

Steven Rona
e Joint Stan

ms of office 
o 8 Februar

the Council
gements for 
Persons.  T

ite during O
Person (Mr 
ny) as to the
s application
e open to th
a further ter

nder the Loc
Conduct Co

Agenda Item 
live, work an

MMITTEE

process and

further perio

confirm the
to the Joint 
ald Anthony
ndards Com

of the Indep
ry 2017. 

l, authorised
r the recruitm
The position
October 201

N Hodson)
eir willingne
ons submitte
he Council t
erm (maxim

calism Act 2
omplaint pro

 

no. 11 
nd enjoy 

E 

d appoint 

od of 

e 

y and 
mmittee 

pendent 

d the 
ment of 
ns were 
6.  
) and 
ess to be 
ed) no 
to 

mum of 

2011 
ocess is 

Page 91

Agenda Item 11



 

 3.5

 

4. 
 
4.1 

 

5. 
 

 
 
Backgro
 
Enquiri

conducted f
complained
Independen
process), an
at any stage
 
A special m
December 2
by way of a

IMPACT O

This links w
valued serv
complies w

IMPLICA

(i) Imp
Acc

A ro
app
con
app

(ii) Imp

(iii) Imp

(iv) Imp

(v) Imp

(vi) Imp

ound Paper

ies to: Stuar

fairly betwe
d about.  Th
nt Person as
nd those the
e during the

meeting of th
2016 and if
an update to

ON CORP

with the cor
vices in a tra
with the law.

TIONS 

pact on Cu
countable’ a

obust consti
ropriate gui

nduct, comm
ropriate and

pact on Equ

pact on Ris

pact on Res

pact on Res

pact on the

s: None. 

rt Jennings, 

een the pers
he Monitorin
s part of the 
e subject of 
e process.  

he Joint Sta
f confirmed 
o this report

ORATE G

rporate goal
ansparent w
. 

stomers – M
and ‘Custom

itution, stro
idance and t

munity leade
d measured 

ualities – N

sk – None.

sources (fin

sources (hu

 Environm

Committee

son making 
ng Officer c
initial asse
complaint m

andards Com
its views w

t.  

GOALS 

l of ‘Deliver
way’ and the

Meets two c
mer Focus’ s

ong ethical s
the indepen
ership to ou
response to

None. 

nancial) – N

uman) – No

ment – None

e Services M

the compla
can choose t
ssment a co
may also sp

mmittee is p
will be repor

ring good q
e desire for h

core values 
supporting t

standards fra
ndent overvi
r customers

o any issues

None. 

one. 

e. 

Manager, (T

A

aint and the 
to consult w

omplaint (St
peak to the I

provisionally
rted separate

quality, cost 
high ethical

of ‘Transpa
the Council

amework co
iew ensure h
s and comm
s. 

el: 01621 8

Agenda Item 

member 
with the 
tage 1 of the
Independen

y arranged 
ely to the C

effective an
l standards. 

arent and 
l’s corporate

oupled with
high standa

munities usin

75745). 

no. 11 

e 
t Person 

for 9 
Council 

nd 
 It also 

e goals. 

h 
ards of 
ng an 

Page 92



Our Vis

REPOR
INTER
to 
COUN
15 DEC
 
VENUE
COMM

1. 
 

 1.1

 

2. 
 

 

3. 
 

 3.1

 
 3.2

 3.3

sion: Working

RT of 
RIM DIREC

CIL 
CEMBER 2

E OF MEE
MITTEE 

PURPOSE

To review t
Planning C

RECOMM

To the Sout
 
To consider
 
To the Cou
 
That the Co
Area Plann

SUMMAR

It is eviden
Council Of
meetings at
Eastern Are
the current 

This venue 
efficient or
electronic p
is an excep
Council. 
 
The venue 
with the cu

• Giv
exit
imp

g in Partners

CTOR OF 

2016 

ETINGS OF

E OF THE 

the arrangem
Committee. 

MENDATIO

th-Eastern A

r and make 

uncil: 

ouncil is rec
ning Commi

RY OF KEY

nt that to con
ffices is no l
t this venue
ea Planning
South Easte

has limited
ganisation a
presentation
tion to the a

has been ris
urrent meetin

ven the close
t, Members 
plications fo

ship to make 

RESOURC

F THE SOU

REPORT

ments and v

ON 

Area Planni

comment o

commended
ittee be held

Y ISSUES

ntinue holdi
longer effic
is very hist

g Sub-Comm
ern Area Pl

d capacity fo
and manage
ns and no so
approach tak

sk assessed 
ng venue ha

e proximity
and staff m

or their safet

the Maldon 

CES 

UTH EAST

venue for m

ing Commit

on the recom

d to agree th
d at the Cou

ing meeting
ient or in lin
torical and s
mittee cover
lanning Com

or public att
ement of the
ound record
aken for all o

and the foll
ave been ide

y to public s
might experi

ty. 

District a bet

TERN ARE

meetings of t

ttee: 

mmendation

hat future m
uncil Offices

gs at the Bur
ne with curr
stems from 
ring an area
mmittee. 

tendance, h
e meeting an
ing facilitie
other meetin

lowing sign
entified: 

eating, sma
ence undue

A
tter place to 

EA PLANN

the South Ea

n to the Cou

meetings of th
s, Princes R

rnham-on-C
rent require
the days wh

a much less 

as limited s
nd has little

es.  On the la
ngs of Com

nificant haza

ll committe
discomfort

Agenda Item 
live, work an

NING 

astern Area

uncil set out

the South Ea
Road, Maldo

Crouch Tow
ements.  Ho
hen there w
than that se

space for the
e resource fo
atter point a

mmittees of t

ards associa

ee room and
t with poten

 

no. 12 
nd enjoy 

a 

t below. 

astern 
on. 

wn 
lding 

was an 
erved by 

e 
or 
alone, it 
the 

ated 

d single 
ntial 

Page 93

Agenda Item 12



 3.4

 3.5

 3.6

 3.7

4. 
 

 4.1

 

5. 
 

 5.1

 

6. 
 

• Onl
exp

• Mem
ven

 
It should be
mitigate the
risks could 
Council Of
caretakers t
 
The Distric
hand, and d
accommoda
reproductio
files, associ
external ven
public atten
 
In terms of 
Committee
not be seen
 
The Counc
with its pro
need to mak
of Council 
 

CONCLUS

It is conclu
Area Plann
Burnham-o

IMPACT O

This links w
valued serv

IMPLICA

(i) Imp
abo

(ii) Imp

ly one door 
osed to an u

mbers and s
nue, Membe

e noted that
e hazards as
be removed

ffices.  In pa
team to mon

ct Council O
despite know
ation (steps

on), it is far 
iated paperw
nues which
ndance. 

f service to t
 now serves

n as less con

il continues
oposed remi
ke this chan
and commi

SION 

uded that the
ning Commi
on-Crouch. 

ON CORP

with the cor
vices in a tra

TIONS 

pact on Cu
ve. 

pact on Equ

at the back 
unsafe situa

staff leaving
rs and staff 

t appropriate
s far as prac
d or control
articular, the
nitor securit

Offices is the
wn shortcom
s are being t
more effici
work and eq

h have from 

the public, a
s a wide geo

nvenient. 

s to look at m
it, the Corpo
nge in line w
ittee meeting

ere is no com
ittee to cont

ORATE G

rporate goal
ansparent w

stomers – N

ualities – N

of the room
ation. 

g the meetin
f will have t

e controls a
ctically poss
lled better if
ere is a dedi
ty. 

e administr
mings in ter
taken to imp
ient.  It is cl
quipment to
time to tim

as mentione
ographical a

more efficie
orate Gover
with a desire

ngs. 

mpelling arg
tinue to be h

GOALS 

l of ‘Deliver
way’. 

Nothing sig

None. 

m means Me

ngs in darkn
o walk to v

and measure
sible.  Howe
f the meetin
icated mem

ative centre
rms of publi
prove the qu
learly more 
o an externa

me been nece

ed above the
area and the

ent ways of 
rnance Work
e to look at 

gument for 
held at the T

ring good q

gnificant.  A

A

embers and 

ness.  Due to
ehicles. 

es have been
ever, it is co

ngs are held 
mber of staff 

e with all req
ic capacity a
uality of the
resourceful

al venue incl
essary due t

e South Eas
e District Co

f working an
king Group
some form 

meetings o
Town Counc

quality, cost 

Any implicat

Agenda Item 

staff could

o lack of pa

n put in plac
onsidered th

d in the Distr
f from the 

quisite reso
and overflo
e televised 
l to have to 
luding othe

to anticipate

stern Area P
ouncil Offic

nd, in conne
p has identif

m of web stre

of the South 
cil Offices, 

effective an

tions are de

no. 12 

be 

arking at 

ce to 
hat the 
rict 

ources to 
w 

more 
er 
ed high 

Planning 
ces need 

ection 
fied the 
eaming 

Eastern 

nd 

alt with 

Page 94



Agenda Item no. 12 

(iii) Impact on Risk – Given the conclusions of the risk assessment referred to 
above, the relocation of meetings to the District Council Offices must 
represent a positive step. 

(iv) Impact on Resources (financial) – Nothing significant.  The only 
comparators are the annual amount paid to the Town Council to hire its 
premises (£500) and the cost of accommodating an additional meeting at the 
District Council Offices. 

(v) Impact on Resources (human) – Increased efficiency through staff not 
having to move files, paperwork, and presentational equipment out of the 
District Council Offices. 

(vi) Impact on the Environment – None. 
 
 
Background Papers: None. 
 
Enquiries to: Stuart Jennings, Committee Services Manager, (Tel: 01621 875745). 
 
 
 
ADDENDUM 
 
At the meeting of the South-Eastern Area Planning Committee on 5 December 2016 it was 
considered that this matter should be deferred until February 2017 to enable the Town 
Council to look at improving the facilitation of meetings at that venue.  It was generally felt 
that the use of that venue was beneficial to customers in that part of the District. 
 

Page 95



This page is intentionally left blank



Our Vis

REPOR
CHIEF
to 
COUN
15 DEC
 
PROCE

1. 
 

 1.1
 

2. 

 

 

 

3. 
 

 3.1

 3.2

 3.3

 3.4

sion: Working

RT of 
F EXECUT

CIL 
CEMBER 2

EEDS OF C

PURPOSE

To provide 

RECOMM

 
The Counc

(i) end
limi
whi

(ii) app
con
Proc

SUMMAR

The POCA
criminal co
after a conv
to deny crim
criminality
 
Confiscatio
dealers to d
criminal co
orders again
authorities.
 
For POCA 
the prosecu
the court ot
unless the d
 
The confisc
the Court m

g in Partners

TIVE 

2016 

CRIME AC

E OF THE 

the Counci

MENDATIO

il is asked t

dorse applica
ited to the in
ich a defend

rove a mino
ntained at pa
cedural at p

RY OF KEY

A sets out the
onfiscation b
viction has t
minals the u
.  

on orders un
deprive crim
onduct.  Les
nst people w
 

to apply the
utor must ha
therwise bel
defendant h

cation order
must conside

ship to make 

CT 2002 

REPORT

il with an up

ONS 

to: 

ation of the 
nstigation o

dant has ben

or amendme
aragraph 6 o
page 7) as se

Y ISSUES

e legislative
being the m
taken place
use of their 

nder POCA 
minals of the

s frequently
who commi

ere must ha
ave asked fo
lieves it is a
as benefited

r must be m
er, on the ba

the Maldon 

pdate on the

Proceeds o
of confiscati
nefited from

ent to the cu
of Section 9
et out at par

e scheme fo
most common

.  The aim o
assets, reco

are frequen
e financial g
y used thoug
it crimes un

ave been a s
or the confis
appropriate 
d from the c

made in the C
alance of pr

District a bet

e Proceeds o

of Crime Ac
ion proceed

m their crimi

urrent deleg
9 (Terms of 
ragraph 3.11

or the recove
nly used po
of the asset 
over the proc

ntly used ag
gain they ha
gh, is the po

nder legislat

uccessful pr
scation orde
to make it. 

criminal con

Crown Cour
robabilities,

A
tter place to 

of Crime Ac

ct (POCA), i
dings in appr
inal conduc

gation to the
Reference –
1 below. 

ery of crimi
ower.  Confi
recovery sc
ceeds of cri

gainst frauds
ave received
ower to obta
ion minister

rosecution f
er during the
 The order 

nduct.  

rt.  Before m
 whether th

Agenda Item 
live, work an

Act 2002 (PO

including b
ropriate cas

ct or lifestyl

e Chief Exec
– General a

inal assets w
iscation occ
cheme in PO
ime and to d

sters and dru
d from their
ain confisca
red by loca

for the offen
he proceedin

will not be 

making the 
he defendan

 

no. 13 
nd enjoy 

OCA). 

but not 
ses in 
e; and 

cutive 
and 

with 
curs 
OCA is 
deter 

ug-
r 
ation 
l 

nce and 
ngs, or 
made 

order 
t has a 

Page 97

Agenda Item 13



 3.5

 3.6

 3.7

 3.8

 3.9

 
 3.10

criminal lif
‘criminal li
an individu
are found in
period of at
constitutes 
any other p
 
If the Court
particular c
amount is a
The powers
deters futur
where there
 
In terms of 
monies con
balance is s
both of who
the Departm
for two mem
to  be both 
recover 37.
 
There are tw
provisions. 
benefit furt
reduction o
and/or Inve
towards fur
 
Using caref
to target kn
contentious
at the same
 
Norwich C
Act to recla
Multiple O
Council rec
Proceeds of
February 20
examples sh
and the pot

Maldon Dis
take advant
landlords, C
notice and i
with the ex
sit with the

festyle or ha
ifestyle’ com
ual has a crim
n section 75
t least six m
the offence

penalty (e.g.

t decides th
criminal con
an amount e
s to confisca
re crime, an
e is a prosec

f recovery o
nfiscated, w
split betwee
om receive 
ment of Com
mbers of sta
the Collecti
5%. 

wo key adv
 Firstly, the

ther from th
of crime.  Se
estigating T
rther law en

ful judgeme
nown repeat
s individual
e time recov

ity Council 
aim £40,000
ccupancy li
ceived £562
f Crime Act
010, obtaine
how the bro
tential finan

strict Counc
tage of POC
Council Tax
individuals 

xception of b
 Chief Exec

as benefited
mes directly
minal lifesty
5(2) and wil

months and t
e” (section 7
 fine) which

hat the defen
nduct, it mu
equal to the 
ate are there

nd reimburse
cution. 

f the defend
hilst the Co

en the Colle
a payback o

mmunities a
aff to be tra
ion Agency

antages to t
e offender, b

heir actions w
econdly, the
eam, can re

nforcement a

ent and thor
t offenders, 
cases, crea

vering sums 

became the
0 from a cri
icense cond
2,000 as its s
t against a c
ed a confisc
oad range of
ncial benefit

cil has a num
CA.  This co
x and Busin
undertaking

benefit fraud
cutive under

d from the p
y from the le
yle or has b
ll frequently
the defenda
75(2)(c)).  T
h may have

ndant has be
ust assess the

defendants
e as a crime
es the cost o

dants benefi
ourts Servic
ection Agen
of 18.75%.
and Local G
ained in the 
y and the Inv

the Council 
by forfeitin
which shou
e local autho
eceive a sha
activity.  

rough invest
as well as h

ating a real d
to cover th

e first local 
iminal landl
ditions in Oc
share of a c
convicted fr
cation order
f services th
ts of doing s

mber of ser
ould include
ness Rate fra
g activities 
d, the powe
r the genera

articular cri
egislation. 

benefited fro
y mean “an 

ant has bene
The confisca
e been impo

enefited from
e recoverab
benefit from

e fighting an
of the inves

it, the Gove
e benefits b
cy and the C
 The Counc

Government
use of POC
vestigating 

seeking to 
ng the proce
uld assist wi
ority, by be
re of those 

tigation, loc
helping reso
deterrent ag

he costs of a

authority to
lord, who fa
ctober 2012
confiscation
raudster.  A
r for £180,0
hat are able 
so for the C

vices and ar
e, (not exclu
aud, non-co
without app

ers to author
al delegation

A

iminal cond
The key tes

om particula
offence com
fited from t
ation order i
sed by the C

m general c
ble amount. 
m the condu
nd preventio
tigation to t

ernment rece
by 12.5%.  T
Council's In
cil made a s
in 2014 for

CA which al
Team, and t

make use o
eds of the c
th the preve
ing the Coll
sums recov

cal authoriti
olve large, c
gainst breaki
ny necessar

o use the Pro
ailed to com
.  Whilst Be
order made

lso Hounslo
00 for flat c
to use the l
ouncil. 

reas that hav
usively) dea
mpliance w
propriate lic
rise the taki
n contained

Agenda Item 

duct.  The te
sts for decid
ar criminal 
mmitted ov
the conduct
is in additio
Court.  

criminal con
 The recove
uct concern
on measure
the public p

eives 50% o
The remaini
nvestigation
successful b
r funding to
llows the au
therefore ab

of the POCA
crime, does 
ention and 
lection Age

vered for use

ies can use t
complex and
ing the law 
ry remedial 

oceeds of C
mply with H
edford Boro
e under the 
ow Council
conversions
legislative p

ave the poten
aling with ro

with an enfo
censes.  Cur
ing of such 
d at paragrap

no. 13 

erm 
ding if 
conduct 
er a 
which 

on to 

nduct or 
erable 

ned.  
, it 

purse, 

of all 
ing 
n Team; 
bid to 
o allow 
uthority 
ble to 

A 
not 

ency 
e 

this tool 
d 
while 
action. 

Crime 
ouse of 
ough 

, in 
s.  These 
powers 

ntial to 
ogue 
rcement 
rrently, 
action 
ph 6 of 

Page 98



 3.11

 3.12

 3.13

 3.14

 

4. 
 

 4.1

 4.2

Section 9 (T
provides th
 
“The Chief
Democratic
Chairman i
or defend le
otherwise p
document, 
The exercis
responding
Court, and 
 
It is propos
of the word
would be su
Constitutio
Democratic
Advisor.  
 
In relation t
Resources a
Procedural 
Executive. 
appropriate
 
It is propos
this time th
policies, thi
are provide
Planning En
review it is
added will 
 
The Govern
confiscation
enforcemen
recovery.  T
services thr

CONCLUS

POCA was
criminal as
Local Auth
the crimes u
 
The Chief E
consider th

Terms of R
hat: 

f Executive,
c Services M
in his or her
egal procee
provided for
subject to s
se of this au
 to legal rep
the pursuan

sed that ther
ds “Legal an
ubstituted.  
n and is des
c Services M

to benefit fr
at paragraph
at page 18)
In future ot

e Director in

sed that the 
he use of PO
is does not 

ed for within
nforcement
 envisaged 
be consisten

nment has m
n order shou
nt activity, f
This means 
roughout th

SION 

 introduced
sets with cr

horities are i
under legisl

Executive, i
e appropria

eference – G

 in consulta
Manager, Ch
r absence) a
dings on an
r in Officer 
ubsequent r

uthorisation 
presentation
nce and settl

re be a mino
nd Democra
This is con

signed to en
Manager, Se

raud a speci
h 16 of Sect
).  This is th
ther service 
n relation to

Council ma
OCA is not e

however pr
n the statuto
t Policy is cu
that a sectio
nt with the r

made it clea
uld be spen
for the furth
that they ca
e local auth

d in 2002 an
riminal conf
increasingly
lation minis

in consultat
ateness and e

General and

ation with th
hairman of 

and Leader o
ny criminal 

delegation 
report to the
shall, for th

ns on behalf
lement of d

or amendme
atic Service
nsistent with
nable consul
enior Solicit

ific delegati
tion 9 (Term

herefore out
areas may 

o particular 

akes greater
explicitly co
revent the C
ory framewo
urrently bei
on on POCA
recommend

ar that it exp
nt on further
her preventi
an be used t

hority.  

nd provides 
fiscation be
y using thes
stered by lo

tion with the
expediency

d Procedura

he appropria
the relevant
of the Coun
offence or c
arrangemen

e next meeti
he avoidanc
f of the othe

disputes by m

ent to the ab
s Manager”

h terminolog
ltation to be
tor or other 

ion has been
ms of Refer
side of the d
look to seek
crimes falli

r use of the a
overed in an

Council from
ork.  Memb
ing reviewe
A will be in
dation conta

pects monie
r criminal co
on or reduc
to support a

a legislative
ing the mos

se powers to
cal authorit

e applicable
y of authoris

A

al at page 7)

ate Director
t Committee

ncil, be auth
civil procee
nts elsewher
ing of the re

ce of any do
er party, any
means other

bove delega
” the words 
gy elsewher
e with the L
appointed e

n given to th
ence – Gen
delegation t
k specific de
ng within th

available PO
ny of the Co
m making an
bers are aske
ed and that a
ncluded.  An
ained in this

s gained as 
onfiscation 
ction of crim
a more effec

e scheme fo
st commonly
o greater eff
ies.  

e Members a
sing the use 

Agenda Item 

).  This dele

r, Legal and
e (or Vice-

horised to in
edings not 
re in this 
elevant Com

oubt, include
y directions 
r than litiga

ation so that
“Legal Adv

re in the 
Legal and 
external Le

he Director
neral and 
to the Chief

delegations t
heir Directo

OCA power
ouncil’s ado
ny applicati
ed to note th
as part of th
ny such con
s report.  

a result of a
activity and

me or furthe
ctive enforc

or the recov
y used pow

fect in relati

and Officer
of POCA p

no. 13 

egation 

d 

nstitute 

mmittee. 
e 
of the 
tion.”  

t instead 
visor” 

gal 

of 

f 
to the 
orate.  

rs.  At 
opted 
ons as 
hat the 

his 
ntent 

a 
d law 
r asset 
ement 

very of 
wer.  
ion to 

rs, will 
powers 

Page 99



 
 4.3

 

5. 
 

 5.1

 

6. 
 

 
Backgro
 
Enquiri

including b
which a def

The Counc
with the cu
but not limi

IMPACT O

The use of 
Goals of str
organisatio
transparent

IMPLICA

(i) Imp
asso
trea

(ii) Imp

(iii) Imp
prio
case

(iv) Imp
und
ope
“inc
in c

(v) Imp
inve

(vi) Imp
law
plan
dist
resu

ound Paper

ies to: Wend

but not limit
fendant has

il should ap
urrent delega
ited to insti

ON CORP

POCA pow
rengthening
n that deliv

t way. 

TIONS 

pact on Cu
ociated lega
ated fairly an

pact on Equ

pact on Ris
or to making
es.  

pact on Res
der POCA w
rated by the
centivisation
crime or furt

pact on Res
estigations. 

pact on the
w and failure

nning persp
trict.  In turn
ulting in har

s: None. 

dy Morse, S

ted to the se
benefited f

pprove the a
ation to her,
gating conf

ORATE G

wers, includi
g communit
vers good qu

stomers – A
al action wil
nd consisten

ualities – N

sk A risk ass
g use of the 

sources (fin
will be return
e Home Off
n” scheme m
ther asset re

sources (hu

 Environm
e to take effe
ective, coul
n this could 
rm which m

Senior Solic

eeking of co
from crimin

approach tha
, should con
fiscation pro

GOALS 

ing confisca
ties to be sa
uality cost e

Application
ll help to en
ntly.  

None identif

sessment w
legislative 

nancial) –  A
ned to the A
fice.  Any fu
must be use
ecovery. 

uman) – Of

ment – Failu
fective enfor
ld result in a

d lead to adv
might be diff

citor (Tel: 0

onfiscation o
nal conduct 

at the Chief
nsider use o
oceedings. 

ation orders
fe, active an

effective and

n of approve
nsure that ou

fied. 

will be under
power, it w

A proportio
Authority un
unds receive
ed for the fu

fficer time a

ure to deter i
rcement act
an increase 
verse impact
ficult to rem

1621 87575

A

orders, in ap
or a crimina

f Executive,
of the POCA

s, is linked t
nd healthy a
d valued ser

ed enforcem
ur customer

rtaken on a 
will not be ap

on of the am
nder the inc
ed as a resu

urther preven

associated w

individuals 
ion, particu
in illegal ac
ts on the en

medy or miti

52). 

Agenda Item 

ppropriate c
al lifestyle. 

, in accorda
A powers in

to the Corpo
and aiming 
rvices in a 

ment policies
rs and reside

case by cas
ppropriate i

mounts confi
centive sche
ult of the 
ntion or red

with underta

from break
ularly from a
ctivities wit

nvironment 
igate. 

no. 13 

cases in 
 

ance 
ncluding 

orate 
to be an 

s and 
ents are 

se basis 
in all 

fiscated 
eme 

duction 

aking 

king the 
a 
thin the 

Page 100


	Agenda
	3 Minutes - 27 October 2016
	Minutes

	8 Recommendations of Committees for Decision by the Council
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3

	9 FUL/MAL/16/00872 - Topsail Charters Limited, Cooks Boatyard, The Hythe, Maldon
	10 Schedule of Meetings 2017 / 18
	Appendix 1

	11 Appointment of Independent Person(s)
	12 Venue of Meetings of the South Eastern Area Planning Committee
	13 Proceeds of Crime Act 2002

